LEINER PAK GELATINE LTD.

=

ANNUAL REPORT

VA



C ONTENTS

COMPANY INFORMATION 1
NOTICE OF MEETING 2
VISION / MISSION STATEMENT 4
CORPORATE STRATEGY 5
CHAIRMAN’S REVIEW 6

DIRECTORS' REPORT

STATEMENT OF VALUE ADDITION
& WEALTH DISTRIBUTION 29

STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE
WITH LISTED COMPANIES

(CODE OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE) REGULATIONS, 2019 30
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REVIEW REPORT 35
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 36
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 40
STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS 41
STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 42
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY 43
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 44
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 45
PATTERN OF SHAREHOLDING 71
JAMA PUNJI INFORMATION 74

FORM OF PROXY 75




COMPANY INFORMATION
BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Mr.Ahmed Ali Riaz Chairman
Khwaja Imtiaz Ahmed Chief Executive & Managing Director
Ibrar Ahmed Khwaja Executive Director
ljlaz Ahmed Khwaja Non-Executive Director
Ayesha Ahmed Non-Executive Director
Rashid Minhas Independent Director
Syed Rizwan Haider Independent Director
AUDIT COMMITTEE

Rashid Minhas (Chairman)
liaz Ahmed Khwaja (Member)
Ahmed Ali Riaz (Member)
HUMAN RESOURCE AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE
Rashid Minhas (Chairman)
Khwaja Imtiaz Ahmed (Member)
Ayesha Ahmed (Member)
SUSTAINABILITY COMMITTEE
Ahmed Ali Riaz (Chairman)
ljiaz Ahmed Khwaja (Member)
Ayesha Ahmed (Member)
COMPANY SECRETARY
Ibrar Ahmed Khwaja
CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER
Mr. Muhammad Javaid
AUDITORS
M. Almas & Co.
Chartered Accountants

207-Sadiq Plaza, ond Floor, 69-The Mall, Lahore.
LEGAL ADVISOR
Labeeb Zafar Bajwa
Advocate
4-A, Mozang Road, Lahore
REGISTRAR
CORPLINK (PVT) LTD.,
Wings Arcade, 1-K Commercial,
Model Town, Lahore
REGISTERED OFFICE
17-G, Gulberg-2, G/Postmall No. 3529, Lahore-54660
Ph. #: 0092-42-35756953-54
PLANT

1gth Kilometer,
Shahrah-e-Pakistan, Kala Shah Kaku,
District Sheikhupura.
Ph. #: 0092-42-37950018 — 37980179
BANKERS
Bank Al Habib Limited
Bank Makramah Limited
United Bank Limited
National Bank of Pakistan
Bank Islami Pakistan Limited
MCB Bank Limited-Islamic Banking
Bank Alfalah Limited-Islamic Banking

1



LEINER PAK GELATINE LIMITED

NOTICE OF 41ST ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

Notice is hereby given that the 415t Annual General Meeting of LEINER PAK GELATINE
LTD., will be held on Monday, the 28" October, 2024 at 10.00 A.M. at the Registered
office of the Company, 17/G, Gulberg-2, Lahore-54660 to transact the following
business:

1. Recitation from the Holy Quran.

2. To confirm the minutes of the Annual General Meeting held on Friday, 27t
October, 2023.

3. To receive and adopt the Annual Accounts of the Company for the Year ended
30t June, 2024 together with Directors’ and Auditors’ Report thereon.

4. To appoint the Auditors of the Company for the year ending 30™ June, 2025 and
to fix their remuneration.

In accordance with Section 223 of the Companies Act, 2017 and pursuant to
SECP S.R.O. 389(1)/2023 dated March 21, 2023, the financial statements of the
company can be accessed through the following weblink and QR enable code:

http://www.leinerpakgelatine.com/reports.php?type=1

BY ORDER OF THE BOARD,

(IBRAR AHMED KHWAJA),
LAHORE: COMPANY SECRETARY.
DATED: 07t October, 2024.
NOTES:

1. The Share Transfer Books of the Company will remain closed from 224 October,
2024 to 28" October, 2024 (both days inclusive). Shares may be lodged for
transfer with our Registrar M/s CORPLINK (PVT) LTD., Wings Arcade, 1-K,
Commercial, Model Town, Lahore. Phone Nos: 042-35839182, 35887262,
35916719 Fax No: 042-35869037.

2. The Shareholders are advised to notify the Registrar of any change in their
address.

3. The shareholders intending to participate in the meeting via video link are hereby
requested to share the following information for obtaining video link and login
credentials, with the office of the company secretary:

Shareholder's Name, CNIC Number, Folio/CDC Account No., Active Mobile
Phone Number and Email address for timely communication.

This information shall be sent not later than 48 hours before the time of AGM at
Email: info@leinerpakgelatine.com
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4. A member entitled to attend and vote at this meeting may appoint another
member as proxy to attend and vote instead of him. The Proxy Form duly signed
and stamped must be received at the Registered Office of the Company not less
than 48 hours before the time of holding the meeting. Proxy form can be
downloaded from Company’s website (www.leinerpakgelatine.com).

5. Any individual beneficial owner of the share in the Central Depository Company
(CDC) entitled to vote at this meeting with him/her to prove him/her identity
together with his/her Account number in CDC and in case of proxy, must enclose
an attested copy of his/her CNIC. Representative of Corporate Members should
bring the usual documents required for such purpose.

6. Pursuant to the directive of the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan
(SECP), CNIC numbers of shareholders are mandatory required on dividend
warrants. Shareholders are therefore requested to submit a copy of their CNIC (if
not already provided) to the Shares Registrar. In case of non-receipt of the copy of
a valid CNIC, the company would be unable to comply with SRO 831(1)/2012
dated July 05, 2012 of SECP and therefore will be constrained under SECP order
dated July 13, 2015 to withhold the dispatch of dividend warrants of such
shareholders.

7. Shareholders, who by any reason, could not claim their dividend or bonus shares
or did not collect their physical shares, are advised to contact our Share Registrar
M/s Corplink (Pvt) Limited to collect / enquire about their unclaimed dividend or
pending shares, if any.

8. As per section 72 of the Companies Act, 2017 every existing listed company shall
be required to replace its physical shares with book-entry form in a manner as
may be specified and from the date notified by the SECP. The shareholders
having physical shareholding are therefore requested to open CDC sub-account
with any of the brokers or investor account directly with CDC to place their
physical shares into scrip less form.

9. Members can also avail video conference facility, in this regard, please fill the
following and submit to registered address of the Company 10 days before
holding of the Annual General Meeting. If the Company received consent from
members holding in aggregate 10% or more shareholding residing at a
geographical location, to participate in the meeting through video conference at
least 7 days prior date of the meeting, the Company will arrange video conference
facility in the city subject to availability of such facility in that city.

“I/'We, of , being a
member of Leiner Pak Gelatine limited, holderof ordinary Share(s)
as per Registered Folio No. hereby opt for video conference facility at

”




VISION STATEMENT

Continue to lead the domestic industry in Gelatine manufacturing with technology and
quality of the product along with persistent recognition in international market in the line
of code of conduct and best practices of corporate governance.

MISSION

The mission of the management of the company is to focus on the vision and its
accomplishment by:

» Adoption of advanced technologies in Gelatine manufacturing.

» Investment in human resources to create and strengthen professional
environment.

» Developing company’s code of conduct and pursuance of best practices of
corporate governance.

> Exploring new international markets with the satisfaction of existing customers.

» Continuous improvement of quality system, environmental management system
from 1S0O-9001:2000, ISO 14000 (already obtained) to other achievements of
quality management.

» Fetching and delivering healthy returns to all stakeholders.

» Contribution towards economic and social uplift of employees and community in
general.



CORPORATE STRATEGY

OBJECTIVES

Our corporate strategy is very much in line with vision and mission statement. Strategic
objectives are covering the following areas.

e Sustainable growth.

e Promotion for efficient use of energy.

e |nnovation in product line.

e Customer satisfaction.

¢ Adherence to the code of conduct.

e Safeguard the shareholders interest.

e Continuous improvement of human capital.

STRATEGIC PLANNING

It is planned to innovate the product line with scheduled R&D activities. Energy Conservation
through calibration, expert advises and induction of efficient machinery and replacing the old
production line which shall lead to sustainable growth. Well-equipped quality assurance
department is maintained to achieve consistency in quality of the products. Optimal
utilization of Company resources to achieve the economy level. Investment in human capital
by participating in workshops, conferences, and different technical courses offered by
reputed institutions. Formulation of Code of Conduct for better governance and to bring
corporate culture in Company.



CHAIRMAN’S REVIEW

On behalf of the Board of Directors, | warmly welcome all participants to the Annual General
Meeting of Leiner Pak Gelatine Limited. It is my pleasure to present the 415t Annual Report.

In the fiscal year 2023-24, Pakistan's economy faced significant challenges, including high
inflation, political instability, and external debt pressures. Efforts to stabilize the economy
included measures to control inflation, which remained a pressing issue for manufacturing
concerns due to immense increase in energy cost, prices of raw material and other allied inputs.
Un abated inflation also affected food prices. Despite these challenges, there were opportunities
for recovery, particularly through initiatives aimed at improving trade relations and harnessing
technology for economic development.

This year also exports of our product (Gelatine) played a vital role in bringing increased revenue
stream and steady growth to the company’s business. Exports contributed Rs.2.295 billion in
total company’s revenue of Rs.3.345 billion. The cost of production this year also remained
highly up surged due to persistent increase in energy prices, cost of raw materials and above all
erratic policy rate (more than 20%). To control the affects of relentless inflation, management of
the company adopted a strategic approach for procurement of raw material which ensured
timely acquisition of good quality materials at competitive prices. As a result company
experienced improved production of Gelatine (1,379 M.Ton) as compared to previous year
Production of 1,070 M.Ton. Despite facing certain challenges, the company demonstrated
resilience and posted a bottom line at Rs. 81.519 million.

Company policies and procedures have been developed and put in place to ensure adherence
to relevant laws and best practices including Code of Corporate Governance Regulations, 2019.
The Board operates in accordance with the principles of Code of Corporate Governance as do
its committees (Audit Committee, Human Resource and Remuneration Committee and
Sustainability Committee). Board is having two independent and one female Director in total
seven Directors. Board held 6 meetings in a year.

In compliance with the provisions of the Code of Corporate Governance, the company has
implemented a system for evaluating Directors. This evaluation is conducted annually. The
pending Directors training program for three Directors will be accomplished in coming days. The
company has implemented various policies which include anti-harassment policy, diversity,
equity & inclusion policy (DE&l) and CSR policy with a focus to create safe work place for
everyone, equal opportunities for its staff members and to facilitate community in health and
education front.

Board of Directors recognizes the contribution of company employees to the success of your

company.
LAHORE AHMED ALI RIAZ
DATED: October 07, 2024 Chairman
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

The Directors are pleased to present the 41t Annual Report along with company’s financial
statements for the year ended 30™ June, 2024 together with Auditors’ Report thereon.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITY

Leiner Pak Gelatine Limited is involved in manufacturing “Halal” Gelatine and Di-calcium
Phosphate (by product).

OPERATIONS

In the fiscal year 2023-24, Pakistan’s economic indicators reflect a complex landscape marked
by both challenges and potential recovery. Real GDP growth grew by 2.38% indicating slow
recovery influenced by persistent inflation and a struggling industrial sector. Inflation continued
to be a pressing concern, driven by rising energy costs and supply chain disruptions which
strained production costs and profitability. Political instability is also creating an un predictable
landscape for the business.

Amidst a challenging environment marked by hyperinflation and economic instability, the
company successfully navigated these obstacles to export its product (Gelatine) leading to
commendable increase in revenue and profitability.

This year, the company reported a topline of Rs. 3.345 billion, a notable increase from Rs. 2.335
billion last year, reflecting a sales revenue growth of 43.23%. Export orders of our product
(Gelatine) secured at favourable prices, contributed significantly to our total revenue with
exports reaching to Rs.2.295 billion and achieving a revenue growth 54.44%. Furthermore,
through a strategic focus on raw material procurement, we were able to boost gelatine
production by 28.87%.

Undoubtedly, the company has achieved its highest turnover ever in its financial history this
year and recorded growth both in terms of revenue and production but at the same time it
operated in cost push inflationary environment. This has significantly impacted cost of
production by increasing the prices of raw material, energy and wages. Highly elevated policy
rates in this financial year, more than 20%, has also stifled profitability of the company and
besides achieving robust sales, company’s profit after tax is arrived at Rs. 81.519 million.

CORPORATE AND FINANCIAL REPORTING FRAMEWORK

Company is fully compliant with the Code of Corporate Governance and Corporate and
Financial Reporting framework of the Securities &Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP).
Board is pleased to place following statement on record:

1. The financial statements prepared by the management of the company present fairly its
state of the affairs, the results of its operations, cash flows and changes in equity.
2. Proper books of accounts have been maintained.
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3. Appropriate accounting policies have been consistently applied in preparation of
financial statements. The accounting estimates wherever required are based on
reasonable and prudent judgment.

4. IFRS and International Accounting Standards as applicable in Pakistan have been
followed in preparation of financial statements.

5. The system of internal control is sound in design and has been effectively implemented
and monitored.

6. There has been no material departure from the best practices of corporate governance,
as detailed in listing regulations.

7. Outstanding taxes, duties and charges have been disclosed in the financial statements.

KEY OPERATING AND FINANCIAL DATA OF LAST SIX YEARS

Years ending on June: 2023 2022 2021 2020 2019 2018
Rupees | Rupees | Rupees | Rupees | Rupees | Rupees
(000s) (000s) (000s) (000s) (000s) (000s)
Turnover 2,335,021 | 1,012,393 941,515 | 660,888 | 779,659 | 752,297
Profit/(Loss) after Taxation 66,673 8,276 5,004 1,928 2,537 (3,956)
Assets 1,839,350 | 1,611,306 | 1,145,211 | 994,892 | 860,191 | 715,769
Dividend - - - - - -
Non-current Liabilities 22,087 12,400 23,378 13,423 864 1,043

ADEQUACY OF INTERNAL CONTROL

Internal control system of the company is properly designed keeping in view the nature of
business and materiality of the transactions involved. Internal control system is periodically
reviewed by the audit committee and improvements in the system are made keeping in view
recommendations of internal audit department.

STATEMENT OF VALUE ADDITION AND ITS DISTRIBUTION

The “Statement of Value Addition and its Distribution®is annexed to the report.

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION

Remuneration of the Board of Directors is approved by the Board. Non-executive Directors and
independent Directors are entitled for fee for attending the meetings. Remuneration of Directors
and Chief Executive Officer are disclosed in Note No. 41 to the financial statements for the year
ended June 30, 2024.



DIRECTORS OF THE COMPANY

During the year following Directors served on the Board of the company.
Sr. No. Name of Directors Number of Meetings

Ahmed Ali Riaz

Khwaja Imtiaz Ahmed

ljaz Ahmed Khwaja

Ibrar Ahmed Khwaja

Ayesha Ahmed

Rashid Minhas (independent)
Syed Rizwan Haider (independent)

NOoOORWN =
ol o Mo Mo Mo Mo Mo

APPROPRIATIONS

Management of the company has made strategic decision to utilize the funds against profits in
research and development and to undertake some major overhauling of the manufacturing
facility and it has been decided to omit the dividend for the current year.

EARNING RATIO:

The earning per share after tax works out to Rs.10.87 {last year Rs.8.89 }.

PROVIDENT FUND

The company operates an approved contributory provident fund covering all permanent
employees. The value of the fund at the year ended 30" June, 2024 is Rs.192.136 million. The
investment values of the respective fund is as follows:

Provident Fund

Last audited statements June 30, 2024
Investments at fair value Rs.(000s) 118,638

These funds are invested as given below:

Rs.(000s)

Unit Trust Schemes 56,952
Mutual Funds 2,012
Savings Schemes of Banks 2,785
Bank Deposits 21,443
Listed Securities 35,446
118,638
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CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR)

Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) refers to a Company’s Commitment to conduct business
ethically and contributing to society. It is a broad concept that can take many forms depending
on the company and industry. Leiner Pak is always extending support to social causes through

donations to hospital and educational sector.

OUT STANDING STATUTORY PAYMENTS

All outstanding payments are of routine nature.

CODE OF CONDUCT

Company has developed and adopted a comprehensive Code of conduct with respect to ethical
practices to be followed by all employees and protection against harassment at work place. This
code out lines expected behavior, prohibited conduct, and the procedure for addressing
harassment at the work place. Board has also adopted controls for timely identification and
redressal of unethical practices performed on the part of employees. Code of conduct is fully
disseminated throughout the company.

BOARD COMMITTEES

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Company has formulated Audit Committee in accordance with code of corporate governance.
This committee is headed by an independent Director. Names of Audit Committee members are
given below:

Name of Directors

Rashid Minhas (Chairman)
ljaz Ahmed Khwaja (Member)
Ahmed Ali Riaz (Member)

Audit Committee provides assistance to the Board of Directors in discharging their
responsibilities in accordance with provisions of code of corporate governance and financial
reporting framework. This committee is also entrusted to implement an effective internal control
system and forward recommendations to the Board of Directors for further improve of the
systems.

Audit Committee’s other responsibilities in the light of code of corporate governance also
include the following:
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1. Determination of appropriate measures to safeguard the company’s assets;

2. Review of annual and interim financial statements of the company, prior to their approval
by the board, focusing on;

a) major judgmental areas;

b) significant adjustments resulting from the audit;

C) going concern assumption;

d) any changes in accounting policies and practices;

e) compliance with applicable accounting standards;

f) compliance with the regulations of code of corporate governance and other
statutory and regulatory requirements; and

g) all related party transactions;

3. Review of the preliminary announcements of results prior to external communication and
publication;

4. Facilitating the external audit and discussion with external auditors of major observations
arising from interim and final audits and any matter that the auditors may wish to
highlight (in the absence of management, where necessary);

5. Review of management letter issued by external auditors and managements’ response

thereto;

Ensuring coordination between the internal and external auditors of the company;

7. Review of the scope and extent of internal audit, audit plan, reporting frame work and
procedures and ensuring that the internal audit function has adequate resources and is
appropriately placed within the company;

8. Consideration of major findings of internal investigations of activities characterized by
fraud, corruption and abuse of power and management’s response thereto;

9. Ascertaining the internal control systems including financial and operational controls,
accounting systems for timely and appropriate recording of purchases and sales,
receipts and payments, assets and liabilities and the reporting structure are adequate
and effective;

10. Review of the company’s statement on internal control systems prior to endorsement by
the Board and internal audit reports;

11. Instituting special projects, value for money studies or other investigations on any matter
specified by the Board, in consultation with Chief executive officer and to consider
remittance of any matter to the external auditors or to any other external body;

12. Determination of compliance with relevant statutory requirements;

13. Monitoring compliance with these regulations (including code of corporate governance)
and identification of significant violation thereof;

14. Review of arrangement for staff and management to report to audit committee in
confidence, concerns, if any, about actual or potential improprieties in financial and other
matters and recommend instituting remedial and mitigating measures;

15. Recommend to the Board the appointment of external auditors, their removal, audit fees,
the provision of any service permissible to be rendered to the company by the external
auditors in addition to audit of its financial statements, measures for redressal and
rectification of non-compliances with the regulations. The Board shall give due

o
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consideration to the recommendations of the audit committee and where it acts
otherwise it shall record the reasons thereof;

16. Consideration of any other issue or matter as may be assigned by the board particularly
with respond to risk management done by the internal auditor and considered by the
audit committee.

HUMAN RESOURCES AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

Human resource management is an important faction of management that deals with most
valuable assets of an organization which is human resource. Human Resource and
Remuneration committee of the company comprises three directors, which include one
executive director and one non-executive director being the members and one independent
director as chairman of the committee. Following three members are entrusted by the board to
form the Human Resource and Remuneration Committee:

Rashid Minhas (Chairman)
Khwaja Imtiaz Ahmed (Member)
Ayesha Ahmed (Member)

In accordance with code of corporate governance, the responsibilities of the committee include:

1. Recommendation to the Board for consideration and approval a policy framework for
determining remuneration of Directors (both executive and non-executive Directors and
members of senior management). The definition of senior management will be
determined by the Board which shall normally include the first layer of management
below the chief executive officer level;

2. undertaking annually, a formal process of evaluation of performance of the Board as a

whole and its committees either directly or by engaging external independent

consultant and if so appointed, a statement to that effect shall be made in the Directors’
report disclosing therein name and qualification of such consultant and major terms of
his/its appointment;

recommending human resource management policies to the Board;

4. recommending to the Board the selection, evaluation, development, compensation
(including retirement benefits) of chief operating officer, chief financial officer, company
secretary, and head of internal audit;

5. consideration and approval on recommendation of chief executive officer on such
matters for key management positions who report directly to chief executive officer or
chief operating officer; and

6. where human resource and remuneration consultants are appointed, they shall disclose
to the committee their credentials and as to whether they have any other connection with
the company.

w
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SUSTAINABILITY COMMITTEE

The Board of Directors of the Company is responsible of governance and oversight of
sustainability risks and opportunities relevant to the Company and its business, assess their
potential financial and operational impacts and formulate strategies for mitigation thereof. The
Board has recently formed a dedicated sustainability committee to discharge its sustainability
related duties. Following are the members of the Sustainability Committee:

Ahmed Ali Riaz (Chairman)
liaz Ahmed Khwaja (Member)
Ayesha Ahmed (Member)

In future sustainability committee will oversee sustainability risks and opportunities of the
company ensuring that environmental, social, governance and economic considerations are
integrated in to the organization’s operations and decision making process. Presently Board of
Directors of the company is looking after risk and opportunities associated with company
business.

DIVERSITY, EQUITY & INCLUSION (DE&I)

Management is dedicated to create a diverse, equitable and inclusive work place where every
employee is valued, respected and empowered. At Leiner Pak, we embrace a wide range of
backgrounds, experiences and perspectives to drive innovation and excellence. Board has
resolved and adopted (DE&I) policy which will be implemented at all levels in each and every

department of the company.

GENDER PAY GAP

Mean Gap Median Gap

The mean pay The median pay

for women is 138.41% higher for women is 174.36% higher
than that of men than that of men

RISK AND UNCERTAINTIES

The company’s potential to generate value for its shareholders is primarily influenced by
macroeconomic factors and specific risks related to its business operations. Currently, the
company faces several risk areas that could impact its operations and profitability:

1. Raw Material Prices: The cost of crushed bone is a significant concern.
2. Foreign Currency Exchange Rates: Fluctuations can affect purchasing power and costs.

3. Energy Costs: The availability and prices of gas and electricity remain critical issues.

14



To produce high-quality gelatin, the company relies on animal bones, specifically bovine bone,
which are exported from Pakistan to countries like China and Japan. The company must
purchase these bones at export parity prices for its own use. A devaluation of the Pakistani
Rupee could exacerbate challenges, making it more difficult to procure animal bones at
reasonable prices.

Devaluation of the Rupee tends to lead to cost-push inflation, driving up prices for industrial
inputs, including raw materials, and potentially reducing capacity utilization rates.

Additionally, Pakistan continues to grapple with an energy crisis, facing high costs for gas, fuel,
and electricity in the manufacturing sector. The government’s efforts to import LNG to meet
industrial demands may not sufficiently alleviate these issues. Rising gas prices, combined with
existing tariffs, could further increase manufacturing costs, thereby impacting the profitability of
the gelatin production business.

IMPACT ON ENVIRONMENT

The business is mindful of its obligation to protect the environment. We work to minimize our
influence on the environment. Management is adamant about upholding the highest standards
for health, safety, and the environment to guarantee the welfare of both our employees and the
communities in which we operate. The business has obtained FSSC and HACCP certifications
in order to meet these criteria. Gelatine is produced strictly in accordance with international
standards at the factory, and no harmful environmental effects have yet been discovered.

FUTURE PROSPECTS

The outlook of Pakistan economic growth in 2024-25 is cautiously optimistic contingent on
several factors, including political instability, economic reforms, addressing inflation. This year
country is expected to focus on stability of its economy by improving its fiscal deficit through
enhancement in tax to GDP ratio. International support from monetary institutions like IMF can
bolster foreign reserves to bring stability in exchange rate of Pak rupee against dollar and other
leading currencies. Overall, inflation, political instability and energy prices can remain pressing
issues that could affect the progress.

Company is experiencing slowed down of its exports amidst a backdrop of sluggish global
economic activities. It is because of adjustments in inventory levels on the part of our buyers in
post covid scenario. We hope that our exports will again pick up in 2" quarter of next financial
year.

TRAINING PROGRAMME OF DIRECTORS

The Company has integrated directors training as a key on going feature. This initiative
ensures that leadership remains informed about best practices and effective governance.
Management is fully committed to cope-up any delay in schedule of Directors orientation
program. Our three Directors out of seven are exempt for training as provided by the Code of
Corporate Governance. One Director had completed his Directors Training Program (DTP).
The remaining three directors include (i) Rashid Minhas being an independent director is an
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electrical engineer and MBA from a recognized university. He has brought vast experience
entrepreneurship with him. However, immediately after the forthcoming election in January
2025, he will complete the Directors’ Training Program. (ii) Syed Rizwan Haider, being an
independent director is a Fellow of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan (ICAP)
and has been attending CPD activities of ICAP. However, immediately after the forthcoming
election in January 2025, he will complete the Directors’ Training Program. (iii) Ayesha
Ahmed, a non-executive director is abreast with major business laws being part of a business
family and carries international experience with her. However, immediately after the
forthcoming election in January 2025, she will also complete the Directors’ Training Program.

TRADE IN SHARES OF THE COMPANY

During the year following movements has been seen in shareholding of one of Director:

Shares Purchased

Khwaja Imtiaz Ahmed 54,000

There is no any sale/purchase/transfer of the company shares during this year by Directors,
Executives, their spouse and minor children.

AUDITORS

The present auditors, M/s M. Almas & Co. Chartered Accountants, Lahore, has completed their
assignment for the year ended June 30, 2024 and shall retire on the conclusion of 415 Annual
General Meeting. The retiring auditors M/s M. Almas & Co. Chartered Accountants are eligible
for re-appointment.

In accordance with the Listed Companies (Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2019,
the audit committee considered and recommended the re-appointment and remuneration of M/s
M. Almas & Co. Chartered Accountants as statutory auditors for the year 2024-2025.

PATTERN OF SHAREHOLDING

It appears on page no:-------=-----
ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

The Board of Directors would like to express their appreciation for the efforts and dedication of

all employees which enabled the company management to run the business affairs smoothly.

KH. IMTIAZ AHMED IBRAR AHMED KHAWAJA
Chief Executive Officer & Managing Director Director
Lahore.

Dated: October 07, 2024
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STATEMENT OF VALUE ADDITION & WEALTH DISTRIBUTION
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024

2024 %age 2023 %age
(Rs. '000") (Rs. '000")
Value addition
T otal revenue 3,493,394 2,483,552
Bought in materials & services (2,931,783) (2,023,654)
561,611 100% 459,898 100%
Value distribution
To employees
Salaries, wages and benefits 194,373 34.61% 147,377 32.05%
To Government
Income taxes and Sales Tax 184,283 32.81% 176,013 38.27%
To providers of capital/funds
Interest/Mark up on borrowed funds 79,228 14.11% 47,607 10.35%

Retained for reinvestment and growth
Depreciation & retained profits 103,727 18.47% 88,901 19.33%
561,611 100% 459,898 100%
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Statement of Compliance with Listed Companies (Code of
Corporate Governance) Requlations, 2019

Name of the Company: Leiner Pak Gelatine Limited
Year ended: June 30, 2024

The company has complied with the requirements of the Regulations in the
following manner:

1. The total number of directors are 7 as per the following:
a Male director 6
Female director 1

2. The composition of the Board is as follows:

Categories Name of Directors

Rashid Minhas
Independent Directors® Syed Rizwan Haider

Ahmed Ali Riaz

Non-Executive Directors ljaz Ahmed Khwaja
Ayesha Ahmed
Khwaja Imtiaz Ahmed

Executive Directors Ibrar Ahmed Khwaja

Female Director Ayesha Ahmed

* In order to comply with the requirements of Listed Companies (Code of Corporate
Governance) Regulations, 2019, two independent directors were elected on the Board
of Directors upon maturity of existing term, whereas the code requires to appoint at-
least two or one-third of the Board members (whichever is higher). The fraction of 0.33
was not rounded up as the Board feels that two appointed independent directors are
sufficient to maintain independence at the present Board level and the requisite skill is
diverse enough to provide the necessary strategic direction to the Company to
accomplish its determined goals.

3. The directors have confirmed that none of themis serving as a director
on more than seven listed companies, including this company;

4. The company has prepared a code of conduct and has ensured that
appropriate steps have been taken to disseminate it throughout the
company along with its supporting policies and procedures;
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5. The Board has developed a vision/mission statement, overall corporate
strategy and significant policies of the company. The Board has
ensured that complete record of particulars of the significant policies
alongwith their date of approval or updating is maintained by the company;

6. All the powers of the Board have been duly exercised and decisions
on relevant matters have been taken by the Board/ shareholders as
empowered by the relevant provisions of the Act and these Regulations;

7. The meetings of the Board were presided over by the Chairman and, in
his absence, by a director elected by the Board for this purpose.
The Board has complied with the requirements of Act and the
Regulations with respect to frequency, recording and circulating
minutes of meeting of the Board,;

8. The Board have a formal policy and transparent procedures for
remuneration of directors in accordance with the Act and these
Regulations;

9. The Board has arranged Directors’ Training program for the following:

Sr.| Name of Directors Remarks

1 | Khwaja Imtiaz Ahmed Exempt under CCG.

2 | ljaz Ahmed Khwaja Exempt under CCG.

3 | Ibrar Ahmed Khwaja Exempt under CCG.

4 Ahmed Ali Riaz Completed Directors’ Training Program.

10. The Board has approved appointment of chief financial officer, company
secretary and head of internal audit, including their remuneration
and terms and conditions of employment and complied with relevant
requirements of the Regulations;

11. Chief financial officer and chief executive officer duly endorsed the
financial statements before approval of the Board,;

12. The Board has formed committees comprising of members given below:

a) Audit Committee

1. Rashid Minhas (Chairman)
2. ljaz Ahmed Khwaja  (Member)
3. Ahmed Ali Riaz (Member)

b) HR and Remuneration Committee

1. Rashid Minhas (Chairman)
2. Khwaja Imtiaz Ahmed (Member)
3. Ayesha Ahmed (Member)
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c) Sustainability Committee

1. Ahmed Ali Riaz (Chairman)
2. ljaz Ahmed Khwaja (Member)
3. Ayesha Ahmed (Member)

13. The terms of reference of the aforesaid committees have been formed,
documented and advised to the committee for compliance;

14. The frequency of meetings of the committee were as per following:

a) Audit Committee; (quarterly)
b) HR and Remuneration Committee (yearly)

15. The Board has set up an effective internal audit function which comprises of
professionals who are considered suitably qualified and experienced for the
purpose and are conversant with the policies and procedures of the
Company;

16. The statutory auditors of the company have confirmed that they have
been given a satisfactory rating under the Quality Control Review program of
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan and registered with Audit
Oversight Board of Pakistan, that they and all their partners are in
compliance  with  International Federation of Accountants (IFAC)
guidelines on code of ethics as adopted by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of Pakistan and that they and the partners of the firm involved in
the audit are not a close relative (spouse, parent, dependent and non-
dependent children) of the chief executive officer, chief financial officer,
head of internal audit, company secretary or director of the company;

17. The statutory auditors or the persons associated with them have not
been appointed to provide other services except in accordance with the
Act, these Regulations or any other regulatory requirement and the auditors
have confirmed that they have observed IFAC guidelines in this regard;

18. We confirm that all requirements of regulations 3, 6, 7, 8, 27, 32, 33
and 36 of the Regulations have been complied with; and

19.  Explanations for non-compliance with requirements, other than regulations
3,6,7,8,27, 32,33 and 36 are below:

Sr . . Regulation
Requirement Explanation of Non-
No. Compliance Number
1 | Directors’ Training Program (DTP) Four directors of the Company have 19(1)

It is encouraged that by June 30, 2022, all | either acquired Directors’ Training
directors on the Board have acquired the | Program certification or are
prescribed certification under any director | exempted under CCG. The remaining
training program offered by institutions, | three directors include (i) Rashid
local or foreign, that meet the criteria | Minhas being an independent
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---...._lLeinerPak GelatineLtd. ____________________________ . _________. 2023-2024_ ________.
specified by the Commission and approved | director is an electrical engineer and
by it. MBA from a recognized university.
He has brought vast experience of
entrepreneurship with him. However,
immediately after the forthcoming
election in January 2025, he will
complete the Directors’ Training
Program. (ii) Syed Rizwan Haider,
being an independent director is a
Fellow of the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of Pakistan (ICAP) and
has been attending CPD activities of
ICAP. However, immediately after the
forthcoming election in January 2025,
he will complete the Directors’
Training Program. (iii) Ayesha
Ahmed, a non-executive director is
abreast with major business laws
being part of a business family and
carries international experience with
her. However, immediately after the
forthcoming election in January 2025,
she will also complete the Directors’
Training Program.

Directors’ Training Program (DTP) The Company has planned to 19(3)

Companies are encouraged to arrange arrange Directors’ Training Program

training every year under the Directors’ certification for female executives

Training Program for: and departmental heads over the

-at least one female executive; and next few years.

-at least one head of department.

Nominati . The responsibilities as prescribed for

omination Committee o . : 29
The Board may constitute a separate the Nomination Committee are being
) , o addressed at Board level, with the

commlfctee, designated as the Nomination help of Human Resource and

Committee, of such number and class of Remuneration Committee, as and

directors, as it may deem appropriate inits | \yhen needed so a separate

circumstances. committee is not considered to be
necessary.

Risk Management Committee Currently, the Board has not 30

The Board may constitute the Risk constituted a Risk Management

Management Committee, of such number Committee and senior officers of the

and class of directors, as it may deem Company along with the Audit

appropriate in its circumstances, to carry Committee perform the requisite

out a review of effectiveness of risk functions and apprise the Board

management procedures and present a accordingly.

report to the Board.
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5 | Role of the Board and its members to | The board established a dedicated
address  sustainability risk and | sustainability committee having one
opportunities: female director. The committee is
responsible for embedding
sustainability principles into the
organization’s strategies, priorities,
targets and oversee compliance of 10A
relevant laws pertaining to relevant
sustainability related considerations
and its appropriate disclosures to
create long term corporate value
and apprise Board accordingly.
Nevertheless, other requirements
introduced recently by SECP
through notification dated June 12,
2024 will be complied with in due
course

The board is responsible for setting the
Company’s  sustainability  strategies,
priorities and targets to create long term
corporate value. The board may establish
a dedicated sustainability committee
having at least one female director.

Khwaja Imtiaz Ahmed Ahmed Ali Riaz
Chief Executive Office Chairman

LAHORE
Dated: October 07, 2024
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REVIEW REPORT

To the members of Leiner Pak Gelatine Limited

Review Report on the Statement of Compliance contained in Listed Companies (Code of
Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2019

We have reviewed the enclosed Statement of Compliance with the Listed Companies (Code of Corporate
Governance) Regulations, 2019 (the Regulations) prepared by the Board of Directors of Leiner Pak
Gelatine Limited for the year ended June 30, 2024 in accordance with the requirements of regulation 36
of the Regulations.

The responsibility for compliance with the Regulations is that of the Board of Directors of the Company. Our
responsibility is to review whether the Statement of Compliance reflects the status of the Company’s
compliance with the provisions of the Regulations and report if it does not and to highlight any non-
compliance with the requirements of the Regulations. A review is limited primarily to inquiries of the
Company’s personnel and review of various documents prepared by the Company to comply with the
Regulations.

As a part of our audit of the financial statements we are required to obtain an understanding of the
accounting and internal control systems sufficient to plan the audit and develop an effective audit approach.
We are not required to consider whether the Board of Directors’ statement on internal control covers all
risks and controls or to form an opinion on the effectiveness of such internal controls, the Company’s
corporate governance procedures and risks.

The Regulations require the Company to place before the Audit Committee, and upon recommendation of
the Audit Committee, place before the Board of Directors for their review and approval, its related party
transactions. We are only required and have ensured compliance of this requirement to the extent of the
approval of the related party transactions by the Board of Directors upon recommendation of the Audit
Committee.

Based on our review, nothing has come to our attention which causes us to believe that the Statement of
Compliance does not appropriately reflect the Company's compliance, in all material respects, with the
requirements contained in the Regulations as applicable to the Company for the year ended June 30,

2024.

Lahore

Dated: October 07, 2024 M. Almas & Co.

UDIN: CR20241078520FABCZzM Chartered Accountants

Audit Engagement Partner

Mohammad Almas
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
To the members of Leiner Pak Gelatine Limited
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the annexed financial statements of Leiner Pak Gelatine Limited (the Company), which
comprise the statement of financial position as at June 30, 2024, and the statement of profit or loss, the
statement of comprehensive income, the statement of changes in equity, the statement of cash flows for the year
then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including material accounting policy information and other
explanatory information, and we state that we have obtained all the information and explanations which, to the
best of our knowledge and belief, were necessary for the purposes of the audit.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the statement of
financial position, the statement of profit or loss, the statement of comprehensive income, the statement of
changes in equity and the statement of cash flows together with the notes forming part thereof conform with the
accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan and give the information required by the
Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017), in the manner so required and respectively give a true and fair view of the
state of the Company's affairs as at June 30, 2024, and of the profit, other comprehensive income, the changes
in equity and its cash flows for the year then ended.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs) as applicable in Pakistan.
Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of
the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the
International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’ Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants as adopted by
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan (the Code) and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most significance in our audit of
the financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on

these matters.

Following are the Key audit matters:

Key audit matters How the matter was addressed in our audit

1. Valuation of stock in trade Our audit procedures to assess the valuation of stock in
trade, amongst others, included the following:

(Refer notes 4.4, 19 and 27 of the financial
statements.) - Obtaining an understanding of internal controls over
purchases and valuation of stock in trade and testing, on a
Stock in trade as at year ended June 30, 2024 | sample basis, their design, implementation, and operating
having carrying value of Rs. 993.277 million | effectiveness;

constitutes 53.06% of total assets.
- Comparing on as sample basis specific purchases with
We identified the valuation of stock in trade as | underlying supporting documents / agreements, if any;

key audit matter as it directly affects the
profitability of the Company. - Comparing calculations of the allocation of directly
attributable costs and allocation of factory overhead costs
with the underlying supporting documents;
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- Physical observation of stock in trade inventory count at the
year end;

- Test of valuation methods and their appropriateness in
accordance with applicable accounting standards;

- Obtaining an understanding of management’s determination
of net realizable value (NRV) and the key estimates adopted,
including future selling prices, future costs to complete work
in process and costs necessary to make the sales and their
basis; and

- Comparing the NRV, on a sample basis, to the cost of
finished goods to assess whether any adjustments are
required to value stock in trade in accordance with applicable
accounting and reporting standards.

2. Revenue recognition

(Refer note 4.10 and 26 in the financial
statements)
The Company generates revenue from sale of
goods to domestic as well as export
customers. During the year, the revenue of the
Company has increased (43.23%) as
compared to the last year. Since revenue
represents one of the key performance
indicators and due to increase in revenue in
the current year, we identified recognition of
revenue (against the sale of goods) as a key
audit matter. In addition, revenue was also
considered as an area of significant audit risk
as part of the audit process.

Our audit procedures to assess the recognition of revenue
recognized from the sale of products included but were not
limited to the following:

- Obtaining an understanding of and assessing the design
and operating effectiveness of controls designed to ensure
that revenue is recognized in the appropriate accounting
period;

- Assessing the appropriateness of the Company's
accounting policies for revenue recognition and compliance
of those policies with applicable accounting standards;

- Comparing a sample of sale transactions recorded during
the year with sales orders, sales invoices, delivery challan
and other relevant underlying documents to assess whether
the related revenue was recognized in accordance with the
Company’s revenue recognition accounting policies;

- Comparing, on a sample basis, specific revenue
transactions recorded before and after the reporting date
with underlying documentation to assess whether revenue
has been recognized in the appropriate accounting period;
and

- Assessed the adequacy of disclosures made in the
financial statements related to revenue.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information included in
the Annual Report, but does not include the financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of

assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in
doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.
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If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Board of Directors for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance
with the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan and the requirements of Companies Act,
2017(XIX of 2017) and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the
preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to continue
as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern
basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has
no realistic alternative but to do so.

Board of directors are responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they
could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial
statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan, we exercise professional judgement and
maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

o |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Company’s internal control.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the
related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

o Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a
manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with the board of directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of
the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify
during our audit.

We also provide the board of directors with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements
regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be
thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.
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From the matters communicated with the board of directors, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters.
We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the
matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our
report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest
benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

Based on our audit, we further report that in our opinion:

a) proper books of account have been kept by the Company as required by the Companies Act, 2017
(XIX of 2017);
b) the statement of financial position, the statement of profit or loss, the statement of comprehensive

income, the statement of changes in equity and the statement of cash flows together with the notes
thereon have been drawn up in conformity with the Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017) and are in
agreement with the books of account and returns;

c) investments made, expenditure incurred and guarantees extended during the year were for the
purpose of the Company’s business; and

d) no Zakat was deductible at source under the Zakat and Ushr Ordinance, 1980 (XVIII of 1980).

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s report is Mohammad Almas.

Lahore M. Almas & Co.
Date: October 07, 2024 Chartered Accountants

UDIN: AR202410785QeOzIrgmy
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o ......._lLeinerPakGelatineLtd. ______________________________________. 2023-2024_______.
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AS AT JUNE 30, 2024
Note 30 June 2024 30 June 2023
------------- Rupees In thousand---=-====-=sseuuux
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Share capital and reserves
Share capital 6 75,000 75,000
Revenue Reserve:
Unappropriated profit 158,200 76,681
Capital Reserve:
Surplus on revaluation of property, plant
and equipment 7 565,654 565,654
Sponsor’s Loan — Related Party 8 82,500 82,500
881,354 799,835
Non-current liabilities
Deferred taxation 10 15,738 8,472
Lease liabilities 9 6,955 13,615
22,693 22,087
Current liabilities
Trade and other payables 1" 566,410 649,075
Unclaimed dividend 771 771
Mark-up accrued 12 14,676 10,966
Short term borrowings 13 379,592 351,606
Current portion of lease liabilities 9 6,647 5,010
968,096 1,017,428
Contingencies and commitments 14 - -
1,872,143 1,839,350
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 15 755,411 761,161
Intangible assets 16 - -
Long term deposits 17 3,105 3,105
758,516 764,266
Current assets
Stores, spare parts and loose tools 18 14,856 28,759
Stock-in-trade 19 993,277 815,020
Trade debts 20 26,824 26,601
Advances 21 5,744 149,576
Trade deposits and short term prepayments 22 1,617 1,348
Other receivables 23 19,511 8,061
Advance tax-net 24 41,968 43,896
Cash and bank balances 25 9,830 1,823
1,113,627 1,075,084
1,872,143 1,839,350
The annexed notes 1 to 47 form an integral part of these financial statements.
KH. IMTIAZ AHMED IBRAR AHMED KH. MUHAMMAD JAVAID

LAHORE
Dated: October 07, 2024

Chief Executive Officer Director Chief Financial Officer

& Managing Director
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STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024
(Restated)
Note 30 June 2024 30 June 2023

Sales - net 26 3,344,534 2,335,021
Cost of sales 27 2,926,641 1,965,458
Gross profit 417,893 369,563
Other income 28 515 487
418,408 370,050
Distribution cost 29 64,178 65,503
Administrative expenses 30 116,186 88,971
Other operating expenses 31 22,525 56,095
Finance cost 32 90,796 57,038
Profit before final tax, minimum tax and income tax 124,723 102,443
Final taxes 33 21,173 16,389
Minimum taxes 33 1,531 -
Profit before income tax 102,019 86,054
Income tax 33
Current - For the year 11,589 10,874
For prior year 1,645 706
Deferred 7,266 7,801
20,500 19,381
Profit after taxation 81,519 66,673
Earnings per share - basic and diluted (Rupees) 34 10.87 8.89

The annexed notes 1 to 47 form an integral part of these financial statements.

KH. IMTIAZ AHMED IBRAR AHMED KH. MUHAMMAD JAVAID
LAHORE Chief Executive Officer Director Chief Financial Officer
Dated: October 07, 2024 & Managing Director
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STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024

30 June 2024 30 June 2023

Profit after taxation 81,519 66,673

Other comprehensive income - -

Total comprehensive income for the year 81,519 66,673

The annexed notes 1 to 47 form an integral part of these financial statements.

KH. IMTIAZ AHMED IBRAR AHMED KH. MUHAMMAD JAVAID
LAHORE Chief Executive Officer Director Chief Financial Officer
Dated: October 07, 2024 & Managing Director
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o ......._lLeinerPakGelatineLtd. ______________________________________. 2023-2024_______.
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024
Reserves
Share Capital Revenue Reserve Capital Reserve
Issued, Surplus on "
subscribed and . revaluation of Sponsor’s
. Unappropriated Loan Total
paid-up share L property, plant
B profit g
capital and equipment
Rupees in thousand
Balance as at June 30, 2022 75,000 10,008 565,654 82,500 733,162
Profit for the year - 66,673 - - 66,673
Other comprehensive income - - - - -
- 66,673 - - 66,673
Balance as at June 30, 2023 75,000 76,681 565,654 82,500 799,835
Profit for the year - 81,519 - - 81,519
Other comprehensive income - - - - -
- 81,519 - - 81,519
Balance as at June 30, 2024 75,000 158,200 565,654 82,500 881,354
The annexed notes 1 to 47 form an integral part of these financial statements.
KH. IMTIAZ AHMED IBRAR AHMED KH. MUHAMMAD JAVAID

LAHORE
Dated: October 07, 2024

Chief Executive Officer Director Chief Financial Officer

& Managing Director
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STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024

30 June 2024 30 June 2023
Note @ = ——memeeeee| Rupees In thousand---------------

CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Cash generated from operations 35 123,849 38,951
Finance cost paid (84,209) (50,384)
Payments to provident fund (3,639) (3,368)
Levies and taxes paid (34,010) (27,650)
Workers' Profit Participation Fund paid 11.3 (1,006) (1,167)
Net cash generated from/ (used in) operating activities 985 (43,618)
CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Additions to property, plant and equipment (16,633) (24,751)
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment 15.7 692 500
Decrease in long term deposits - 254
Net cash (used in) investing activities (15,941) (23,997)
CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Payment of lease liabilities (5,023) (4,755)
Long-term finance from banking companies — repaid - net - (15,611)
Short-term borrowings — received - net 35.1 27,986 87,533
Net cash generated from financing activities 22,963 67,167
Net increase/ (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 8,007 (448)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 1,823 2,271
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 36 9,830 1,823
The annexed notes 1 to 47 form an integral part of these financial statements.

KH. IMTIAZ AHMED IBRAR AHMED KH. MUHAMMAD JAVAID
LAHORE Chief Executive Officer Director Chief Financial Officer

Dated: October 07, 2024 & Managing Director
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024

1 THE COMPANY AND ITS OPERATIONS

Leiner Pak Gelatine Limited ("the Company") was incorporated in Pakistan as a public limited Company on 14 February 1983 under the Companies Ordinance, 1984
(Now the Companies Act, 2017) and is listed on the Pakistan Stock Exchange (PSX). The registered office of the Company is situated at 17-G, Gulberg Il, Lahore and
manufacturing facility is located at 19 Kilometer, Shahrah-e-Pakistan, Kala Shah Kaku, District Sheikhupura. The principal activity of the Company is manufacturing and
sale of gelatine and di-calcium phosphate etc., produced from animal bones and animal hides.

2 STANDARDS, INTERPRETATIONS AND AMENDMENTS TO THE APPROVED ACCOUNTING STANDARDS

21 There are certain amendments and interpretations to the accounting and reporting standards which are mandatory for the Company’s annual accounting period which
began on July 1, 2023. However, these do not have any significant impact on the Company’s financial statements except as disclosed in note 4.21 and 5 to these
financial statements.

2.2 Standards, amendments and interpretations to existing standards that are not yet effective and have not been early adopted by the Company:

Effective date

(annual

reporting

periods
beginning on or

after)

IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements (Amendments) January 01, 2024
IAS 7 Statement of Cash Flows (Amendments) January 01, 2024
IFRS 16 Leases (Amendments) January 01, 2024
IAS 21 The Effects of changes in Foreign Exchange Rates (Amendments) January 01, 2025
IFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures (Amendements) January 01, 2026
IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts January 01, 2026
IFRS 9 Financial Instruments - Classification and Measurement of January 01, 2026

Financial Instruments (Amendments)

2.3 The above standards, amendments to approved accounting standards and interpretations are not likely to have any material impact on the Company’s financial
statements.

2.4 Other than the aforesaid standards, interpretations and amendments, International Accounting Standards Board (IASB) has also issued the following standards and
interpretation, which have not been notified locally or declared exempt by the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP) as at 30 June 2024;

IFRS 1 First-time Adoption of International Financial Reporting Standards
IFRIC 12 Service Concession Arrangements
IFRS 18 Presentation and Disclosures in Financial Statements

IFRS 19 Subsidiaries without Public Accountability: Disclosures
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024

3 BASIS OF PREPARATION

3.1 Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan. The accounting and reporting
standards applicable in Pakistan comprise of:
- International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB) as notified under the Companies Act, 2017; and

- Provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017.
Where provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017 differ from the IFRSs, the provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017
have been followed.

3.2 Basis of measurement

These financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention except for freehold land at revalued amount. In these financial statements, except
for the statement of cash flows, all transactions have been accounted for on accrual basis.

3.3 Judgements, estimates and assumptions

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with approved accounting standards requires management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions
that affect the application of accounting policies and reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. The estimates and associated assumptions and
judgements are based on historical experience and various other factors that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances, the result of which forms the basis
of making judgements about carrying value of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognized in the period in which the estimate is revised
and in any future periods affected.

Judgements made by management in the application of approved accounting standards that have significant effect on the financial statements and estimates with a
significant risk of material adjustment in the subsequent years are discussed in the note - 37.

3.4 Functional and presentation currency
Items included in financial statements are measured using the currency of the primary economic environment in which the Company operates. The financial statements
are presented in Pakistani Rupees, which is the Company's functional and presentation currency.

4  MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

The material accounting policies set out below have been applied consistently to all periods presented in these financial statements.

4.1 Property, plant and equipment
Recognition and measurement

Property, plant and equipment are tangible items that are held for use in production or supply of goods or services, for rentals to others or for administrative purposes and
are expected to be used during more than one year. An item of property, plant and equipment is recognized when it is probable that future economic benefits associated
with the item will flow to the entity and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. On initial recognition, items of property, plant and equipment are measured at cost.
Cost includes expenditures that are directly attributable to the acquisition of the item.

Subsequent to initial recognition, items of property, plant and equipment are measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses with the exception of
freehold land which is measured at revalued amount.

Parts of an item of property, plant and equipment having different useful lives are recognized as separate items.

Major renewals and improvements to an item of property, plant and equipment are recognized in the carrying amount of the item if it is probable that the embodied future
economic benefits will flow to the Company and the cost of renewal or improvement can be measured reliably. The cost of the day-to-day servicing of property, plant and
equipment are recognized in profit or loss, as incurred.

Increase in the carrying amounts arising on revaluation of land are recognized, in other comprehensive income and accumulated in revaluation surplus in shareholders'
equity. To the extent that increase reverses a decrease previously recognized in the statement of profit or loss, the increase is first recognized in the statement of profit or
loss. Decrease that reverses previous increases of the same asset are first recognized in other comprehensive income to the extent of the remaining surplus attributable
to the asset; all other decreases are charged to the statement of profit or loss. The revaluation surplus is not available for distribution to the Company's shareholders.

Capital work-in-progress
Capital work-in-progress is stated at cost less accumulated impairment losses, if any.
Depreciation

Depreciation is recognized in profit or loss by applying reducing balance method over the useful life of each item of property, plant and equipment using the rates
specified in note 15.1 to the financial statements.

Depreciation on additions to property, plant and equipment is charged from the date on which the item becomes available for use. Depreciation is discontinued from the
date on which the item is disposed or classified as held for disposal.

The depreciation method, useful lives and residual values are reviewed and adjusted, if appropriate, at each reporting date.

De-recognition

An item of property, plant and equipment is de-recognized on disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any profit or loss on
disposal of property, plant and equipment is recognized in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024

4.2 Intangible assets
An intangible asset is an identifiable non-monetary asset without physical substance.

Intangible assets are recognized when it is probable that the expected future benefits will flow to the entity and the cost of the asset can be measured reliably. Cost of
intangible asset (i.e. computer software) includes purchase cost and directly attributable expenses incidental to bring the asset for its intended use.

Cost associated with maintaining computer software are recognized as an expense as and when incurred.

Intangible assets are stated at cost less accumulated amortization and accumulated impairment losses, if any. Amortization is charged over the estimated useful life of
the asset as specified in note 16 on a systematic basis applying the straight line method.

Useful lives of intangible operating assets are reviewed, at each reporting date and adjusted if the impact of amortization is significant.

4.3 Stores, spare parts and loose tools
These are generally held for internal use and, except for items in transit which are valued at invoice price plus related expenses incurred up to the reporting date, are

valued at lower of cost and net realizable value. Cost is determined on the basis of weighted average. Provision for obsolete and slow moving items is made based on
management's best estimate regarding their future usability.

4.4 Stock-in-trade

These are valued at lower of cost and net realizable value. Cost is determined using the following basis:

Raw material Weighted average cost

Work-in-process Average manufacturing cost

Finished goods Average manufacturing cost

Raw material in transit Invoice price plus related expenses incurred up to the reporting date.

Average manufacturing cost in relation to work-in-process and finished goods consists of direct material, labor and a proportion of appropriate manufacturing overheads.

Net realizable value signifies the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less estimated costs of completion and estimated costs necessary to make the
sale.

For items which are slow moving, a provision is made for excess of carrying amount over estimated net realizable value.
4.5 Financial instruments

4.5.1 Financial assets

The Company classifies its financial assets at amortized cost, fair value through other comprehensive income or fair value through profit or loss on the basis of the
Company’s business model for managing the financial assets and the contractual cash flow characteristics of the financial asset.

a) Financial assets at amortized cost

Financial assets at amortized cost are held within a business model whose objective is to hold financial assets in order to collect contractual cash flows and the
contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.
Interest income from these financial assets, impairment losses, foreign exchange gains and losses, and gain or loss arising on derecognition are recognized directly in
profit or loss.

b) Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income

Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income are held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash
flows and selling financial assets and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal amount outstanding.

c) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are those financial assets which are either designated in this category or not classified in any of the other categories. A
gain or loss on debt investment that is subsequently measured at fair value through profit or loss is recognized in profit or loss in the period in which it arises.

Financial assets are initially measured at cost, which is the fair value of the consideration given and received respectively. These financial assets and liabilities are
subsequently remeasured to fair value, amortized cost or cost as the case may be. Any gain or loss on the recognition and de-recognition of the financial assets and
liabilities is included in the profit or loss for the period in which it arises.

Financial assets are derecognized when the rights to receive cash flows from the assets have expired or have been transferred and the Company has transferred
substantially all risks and rewards of ownership. Assets or liabilities that are not contractual in nature and that are created as a result of statutory requirements imposed
by the Government are not the financial instruments of the Company.

The Company assesses on a forward looking basis the expected credit losses associated with its financial assets carried at amortized cost and fair value through other
comprehensive income. The impairment methodology applied depends on whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk. For trade receivables, the
Company applies the simplified approach, which requires expected lifetime losses to be recognized from initial recognition of the receivables. The Company recognizes
in profit or loss, as an impairment gain or loss, the amount of expected credit losses (or reversal) that is required to adjust the loss allowance at the reporting date.
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4.5.2 Financial liabilities

Al financial liabilities are recognized at the time when the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. Financial liabilities at amortized costs
are initially measured at fair value minus transaction costs. Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are initially recognized at fair value and transaction costs
are expensed in the profit or loss.

Financial liabilities, other than those at fair value through profit or loss, are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective yield method.

A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged, cancelled or expired. Where an existing financial liability is replaced by another
from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange and modification is treated as a
derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability, and the difference in respective carrying amounts is recognized in the profit or loss.

4.5.3 Off-setting of financial assets and financial liabilities

A financial asset and a financial liability is offset and the net amount is reported in the financial statements if the Company has a legally enforceable right to set-off the
transaction and also intends either to settle on a net basis or to realize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

4.6 Right-of-use assets and lease liabilities
4.6.1 Right-of-use assets

Right-of-use-assets are initially measured at cost being the present value of lease payments, initial direct costs, any lease payments made at or before the
commencement of the lease as reduced by any incentives received. These are subsequently measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment losses, if any.

Depreciation is charged on straight line basis over the shorter of the lease term or the useful life of the asset. Where the ownership of the asset transfers to the Company
at the end of the lease term or if the cost of the asset reflects that the Company will exercise the purchase option, depreciation is charged over the useful life of asset.
Depreciation is charged to profit or loss account at rates given in note 15.1.

4.6.2 Lease liabilities

Lease liabilities are initially measured at the present value of the lease payments discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease. If the implicit rate cannot be
readily determined, the Company’s incremental borrowing rate is used. Subsequently, these are increased by interest, reduced by lease payments and remeasured for
lease modifications, if any. It is re-measured when there is a change in future lease payments arising from a change in an index or rate, a change in assessment of
whether extension option is reasonably certain to be exercised or a termination option is reasonably certain not to be exercised. The corresponding adjustment is made
to the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset, or is recorded in profit or loss if the carrying amount of right-of-use asset has been reduced to zero.

Liabilities in respect of short term and low value leases are not recognized and payments against such leases are recognized as expense in profit or loss. At inception of
a contract, the Company assesses whether a contract is, or contains, a lease based on whether the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for
a period of time in exchange for a consideration and uses hindsight when determining the lease term if the contract contains options to extend or terminate the lease.

4.7 Employee benefits

A defined contribution plan is a post-employment benefit under which an entity pays fixed contribution into a separate entity and will have no legal or constructive
obligation to pay further amounts. Obligation for contribution to a defined contribution plan is recognized as an employee service benefit expense in the statement of profit
or loss when it is due.

The Company operates a recognized provident fund for all its regular employees. Equal monthly contributions are made to the fund both by the Company and employees
at the rate of 8.5% of the basic salary. The fund is administrated by the Trustees.

4.8 Trade and other payables
Trade and other payables are recognized initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortized cost.
4.9 Trade debts and other receivables

Trade debts and other receivables are recognized initially at the amount of consideration that is unconditional, unless they contain significant financing component in
which case such are recognized at fair value. The Company holds the trade debts with the objective of collecting the contractual cash flows and therefore measures the
trade debts subsequently at amortized cost using the effective interest method. Impairment of trade debts and other receivables is described in note 4.16.

4.10 Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognized to the extent it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company and the revenue can be measured reliably. Revenue is measured
at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable and is recognized on following basis:

Revenue from sale of goods is recognised when or as performance obligations are satisfied by transferring control of a promised good or service to a customer, and the
control transfers at a point in time, i.e. at the time the goods are dispatched / shipped to customer. Revenue is measured at fair value of the consideration received or
receivable, excluding discounts, returns rebates and government levies.

4.11 Borrowing costs
Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying assets, which are assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time
to get ready for their intended use or sale or added to the cost of those assets, until such time as the assets are substantially ready for their intended use or sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying asset is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible
for capitalization. All other borrowing costs are recognized in the profit or loss, as incurred.
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412 Taxation

Income tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax expense is recognized in the statement of profit or loss, except to the extent that it relates to items
recognized directly in equity or in other comprehensive income, in which case it is recognized in equity or in other comprehensive income respectively. In making the
estimates for income taxes currently payable by the Company, the management considers the current income tax law and the decisions of appellate authorities on
certain issues in the past.

Current

Provision for current taxation is the amount computed on taxable income at the current rates of taxation, after taking into account tax credits, rebates and exemptions
available, if any. The charge for the current tax also includes adjustments where necessary, relating to prior years which arise from the assessments made / finalized
during the year. The amount of unpaid income tax in respect of current or prior periods is recognized as a liability. Any excess paid over what is due in respect of the
current or the prior periods is recognized as an asset.

Deferred

Deferred tax is accounted for using the balance sheet liability method providing for temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for the
financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for tax purposes.

Deferred tax is measured at rates that are expected to be applied to the temporary differences when they reverse based on laws that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the reporting date. A deferred tax liability is recognized for all taxable temporary differences. A deferred tax asset is recognized for deductible temporary
differences to the extent that future taxable profits will be available against which deductible temporary differences can be utilized. Deferred tax assets are reviewed at
each reporting date and are reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that the related tax benefit will be realized.

4.13 Earnings per share (EPS)

Basic EPS is calculated by dividing the profit or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders of the Company by the weighted average number of ordinary shares
outstanding during the period.

Diluted EPS is calculated by adjusting basic EPS by the weighted average number of ordinary shares that would be issued on conversion of all dilutive potential ordinary
shares into ordinary shares and post-tax effect of changes in profit or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders of the Company that would result from conversion of all
dilutive potential ordinary shares into ordinary shares.

4.14 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents for the purpose of statement of cash flows comprise cash and bank balances. Cash and cash equivalents are carried at cost.

4.15 Foreign currency transactions

Transactions in foreign currency are translated to the functional currency of the Company using exchange rate at the date of transaction. Monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currency at the reporting date are translated to the functional currency at exchange rate at that date. Non-monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currency that are measured at fair value are translated to the functional currency at exchange rate at the date that fair value was determined. Non-
monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currency that are measured at historical cost are translated to the functional currency at exchange rate at the date
of transaction. Any gain or loss arising on transaction is recognized in profit or loss.

4.16 Impairment

Financial assets

The Company recognizes loss allowances for Expected Credit Losses (ECLs) in respect of financial assets measured at amortized cost
The Company measures loss allowances at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs, except for the following, which are measured at 12-month ECLs:
- debt securities that are determined to have low credit risk at the reporting date; and

- other debt securities and bank balance for which credit risk (i.e. the risk of default occurring over the expected life of the financial instrument) has not increased
significantly since initial recognition.

Loss allowances for trade receivables are always measured at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs.

When determining whether the credit risk of a financial asset has increased significantly since initial recognition and when estimating ECLs, the Company considers
reasonable and supportable information that is relevant and available without undue cost or effort. This includes both quantitative and qualitative information and
analysis, based on the Company's historical experience and informed credit assessment and including forward-looking information.

The Company assumes that the credit risk on a financial asset has increased significantly if it is more than past due for a reasonable period of time. Lifetime ECLs are
the ECLs that result from all possible default events over the expected life of a financial instrument. 12-month ECLs are the portion of ECLs that result from default
events that are possible within the 12 months after the reporting date (or a shorter period if the expected life of the instrument is less than 12 months). The maximum
period considered when estimating ECLs is the maximum contractual period over which the Company is exposed to credit risk.

Loss allowances for financial assets measured at amortized cost are deducted from the Gross carrying amount of the assets.

The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is written off when the Company has no reasonable expectations of recovering a financial asset in its entirety or a portion
thereof. The Company individually makes an assessment with respect to the timing and amount of write-off based on whether there is a reasonable expectation of
recovery. The Company expects no significant recovery from the amount written off. However, financial assets that are written off could still be subject to enforcement
activities in order to comply with the Company's procedures for recovery of amounts due.
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Non-financial assets

The carrying amounts of the non-financial assets are assessed at each reporting date to ascertain whether there is any indication of impairment. If such indication exists,
the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated to determine the extent of impairment loss. An impairment loss is recognized in statement of profit or loss. The recoverable
amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs of disposal and value-in-use. Value-in-use is ascertained through discounting of the estimated future cash flows
using a discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risk specific to the assets. For the purpose of assessing impairment,
assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable cash flows (cash-generating units). An impairment loss is reversed if there is a change
in the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount. An impairment loss is reversed only to the extent that asset’s carrying amount does not exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation or amortization, if no impairment loss had been recognized.

4.17 Provisions

Provisions are recognized when the Company has a legal and constructive obligation as a result of past events, and it is probable that outflow of resources embodying
economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of obligation. Provisions are reviewed at each reporting date
and adjusted to reflect the correct best estimate.

4.18 Dividend to shareholders
Dividend paid to shareholders is recognized in the year in which it is declared.
4.19 Segment reporting

Segment information is presented on the same basis as that used for internal reporting purposes by the Chief Operating Decision Maker, who is responsible for allocating
resources and assessing performance of the operating segments. On the basis of its internal reporting structure, the Company considers itself to be a single reportable
segment, however, certain information, as required by the approved accounting standards, is presented in note 40 to these financial statements.

4.20 Contingent liabilities

Contingent liability is disclosed when:

- there is a possible obligation that arises from past events and whose existence will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain
future events not wholly within the control of the Company; or

- there is present obligation that arises from past events but it is not probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the
obligation or the amount of the obligation cannot be measured with sufficient reliability.

4.21 Levies

Tax charged under Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 which is not based on taxable income or any amount paid / payable in excess of the calculation based on taxable
income or any minimum tax which is not adjustable against future income tax liability is classified as levy in the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income as these levies fall under the scope of IFRIC 12/IAS 37

5 RESTATEMENT

During the year, the Institute of Chartered Accountant of Pakistan (ICAP) have withdrawn the Technical Release 27 "IAS 12, Income Taxes (Revised 2012)" and issued
guidance - "IAS 12 Application Guidance on Accounting for Minimum Taxes and Final Taxes". The said guidance requires certain amounts of tax paid under minimum tax
(which is not adjustable against future income tax liability) and final tax regime to be shown separately as a levy instead of showing it in current tax.

Accordingly, the impact has been incorporated in these financial statements retrospectively in accordance with the requirement of International Accounting Standard (IAS
8) — "Accounting Policies, Change in Accounting Estimates and Errors'. There has been no effect on the statement of financial position, the statement of changes in
equity, the statement of cash flows and earning per share as a result of this change.

2024 2023
Had there Impact of . After . Had there been Impact of . After .
been no N incorporating © N incorporating
X change in no change in change in
change in . effects of change L . effects of change
. accounting | . . accounting accounting . .
accounting olic in accounting olic olic in accounting
policy policy policy policy policy policy
Effect on statement of profit or loss
............................................. Rupees in thousand..
Profit before income tax 124,723 22,704 102,019 102,443 16,389 86,054
Levies-final tax - 21,173 21,173 - 16,389 16,389
Levies-minimum tax - 1,531 1,531 - - -
Income tax expense 43,204 22,704 20,500 35,770 16,389 19,381
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6 SHARE CAPITAL 30 June 2024 30 June 2023
Rupees in th d

Authorised share capital

10,000,000 (June 30, 2023: 10,000,000) ordinary shares 100,000 100,000
of Rupees 10 each

Issued, subscribed and paid-up share capital

7,500,000 (June 30, 2023: 7,500,000) ordinary shares
of Rupees 10 each issued as fully paid in cash 75,000 75,000

75,000 75,000

6.1 Ordinary shares of the Company held by associated undertaking as at year end are as follows:

30 June 2024 30 June 2023
-----------(Number of shares)------------

INA Securities (Private) Limited 417,141 405,700
417,141 405,700

7 SURPLUS ON REVALUATION OF PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 30 June 2024 30 June 2023

Rupees in th d
Revaluation surplus -note- 7.1 565,654 565,654
71 Revaluation surplus

Revaluation surplus relating to revaluation carried out at June 30, 1990 8,873 8,873
Revaluation surplus relating to revaluation carried out at June 09, 2008 69,325 69,325
Revaluation surplus relating to revaluation carried out at April 05, 2012 85,936 85,936
Revaluation surplus relating to revaluation carried out at April 26, 2016 114,780 114,780
Revaluation surplus relating to revaluation carried out at May 15, 2019 57,348 57,348
Revaluation surplus relating to revaluation carried out at May 12, 2022 229,392 229,392
565,654 565,654

7.2 The Company had revalued its freehold land on June 30, 1990, June 09, 2008, April 05, 2012, April 26, 2016, May 15, 2019 and May 12, 2022.
The revaluation was carried out by independent valuers Mr. Anwar ul Haq in 1990 and M/S Hamid Mukhtar & Co. in 2008, 2012, 2016, 2019 and
2022 respectively to replace the carrying amount of land with local market values. The following aggregated net appraisal surplus arisen on the
revaluation on June 30, 1990, June 09, 2008, April 05, 2012, April 26, 2016 , May 15, 2019 and May 12, 2022 was credited to surplus on
revaluation of property, plant and equipment.

Surplus on
revaluation

Book value Re-valued amount

--Rupeesin thousand--

Free hold land 7,826 573,480 565,654
7,826 573,480 565,654

7.3 Since the revaluation relate to freehold land which is a non-depreciable asset, no deferred tax liability arises on revaluation. In the absence of
depreciable amount, no incremental depreciation net off deferred tax transferred to unappropriated profit nor any disclosure regarding these have
been made in the above note.

30 June 2024 30 June 2023
Rupees in th 1d
8 SPONSOR’S LOAN - RELATED PARTY 82,500 82,500

This represents a loan received from the Chief Executive of the Company to meet the working capital requirements. This loan is unsecured,
interest free and repayable at the discretion of the Company. In the light of guidance provided in the Technical Release — 32 (Accounting
Directors’ Loan) issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan, this loan has been classified as part of equity.

30 June 2024 30 June 2023
9 LEASE LIABILITIES Rupees in th d
Present value of minimum lease payments 13,602 18,625
Less: current portion presented under current liabilities -note- 9.3 6,647 5,010
6,955 13,615
9.1 Reconciliation of lease liabilities
Opening Balance 18,625 14,427
Add:
Addition during the year - 8,953
Interest on lease liabilities for the year -note- 32 2,940 3,233
2,940 12,186
Less:
payments / adjustments during the year 7,963 | | 7,988 |
7,963 7,988
Closing balance 13,602 18,625
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9.2 Where the implicit rate is available in the lease contract, that has been used which is 3 months KIBOR plus 1.75 % per annum in case of vehicle
leased from Bank Al-Habib Limited. In case of Right-of-use-asset for the office building, the Company’s incremental borrowing rate i.e. 18.07% is

used.

9.3 Future minimum payments and their present values are regrouped as under:

2024

2023

Over one year

More than one year
but less than five

Over one year

More than one year
but less than five

years years
=mmmemmmmmmnmenemeaenmeae-=-—-RUpPEES iN thousand-------e-meoemmecemcccecee
Total minimum lease payments 8,348 7,550 7,987 15,971
Less : Finance charges (1,701) (595) (2,977) (2,356)
Present value of minimum lease payments 6,647 6,955 5,010 13,615
30 June 2024 30 June 2023
10 DEFERRED TAXATION ==smmnmmmmmm----RUpees in thousand-------=-=ssmuuun
Deferred tax on temporary differences comprises of :
Taxable temporary differences
Accelerated tax depreciation 19,935 8,793
Right-of-use assets 3,246 2,172
23,181 10,965
Deductible temporary differences
Minimum tax credits 1,531 -
Lease liabilities 3,945 2,493
Provision for impairment of trade debts 1,967 -
15.738 8.472
Opening Balnce as at July 1 8,472 671
Add: Charged to profit or loss -note- 33.3 7,266 7,801
Closing Balnce as at June 30 15.738 8472

10.1

export sales will not be treated under Final Tax Regime, instead the export sales will now fall under Minimum Tax Regime.

1" TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

Creditors

Accrued liabilities -note-
Contract liabilities -note-
Payable to provident fund -note-
Other payables

Income tax withheld payable

Workers' Profit Participation Fund -note-

Workers' Welfare Fund

111
11.2
42.3

30 June 2024

Deferred tax asset / (liability) is recorded at 100% (2023: 46.14%) of the total deferred tax liability based on the changes in Finance Act 2024, according to which

30 June 2023

=msmenmmmemm----RUpees in thousand-------=--eeeeeen

365,818 205,569
106,323 95,918
65,851 333,588
9200 687

317 150
1,820 26
17,516 8,747
7,865 4,390
566,410 649,075

30 June 2024

This includes salaries payable to Kh. Imtiaz Ahmed- chief Executive and Ibrar Ahmed Kh. executive director as at June 30, 2024 of Rs. 4.1 million

30 June 2023

=msmeemeemm-me--RUpees in thousand----s--eeeeeeeenn

1.1
(June 30, 2023: Rs. 9 million) and Rs.8.81 million (June 30, 2023: Rs. 8.1 million) respectively.

11.2  Contract liabilities represent unsecured advances from customers for the supply of goods by the Company during the period of one year from the
reporting date. Such advances as at June 30, 2023 amounting to Rs. 333.588 million have been recognized as revenue for the year ended June
30, 2024.

11.3  Workers' Profit Participation Fund (WPPF)

Balance at beginning of the year
Interest on funds utilized in Company's
business

Allocation/ expense for the year

-note-
-note-

Less: paid to the fund during the year
Balance at beginning of the year

Interest is paid at prescribed rate under the Companies Profits (Workers' Participation) Act, 1968 on funds utilized by the Company till the date of

allocation to workers.

12 MARK-UP ACCRUED

On borrowings from banking companies - secured

Lease liabilities
Short term borrowings

52

32
31,35

8,747 3,853
2,876 497
6,899 5,564
18,522 9,914
1,006 1,167
17,516 8,747

30 June 2024

=mmmmmmmmmmm----RUpees in thousand-------=-==s=unun

30 June 2023

- 237
14,676 10,729
14,676 10,966
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13 SHORT TERM BORROWINGS

From banking companies - secured
30 June 2024 30 June 2023
-Rupees in thousand-

Export Refinance

Bank Al-Habib Limited -note- 13.1, 13.4 314,990 249,990
Short Term Finance against IBP receivables
Bank Al-Habib Limited -note- 13.2, 13.4 - 25,000
Running finance
Bank Al-Habib Limited -note- 13.3, 13.4 16,663 34,977
331,653 309,967

From related parties - unsecured

Loans from director and close relative thereof -note- 13.7 47,939 41,639
379,592 351,606

13.1  The finance against packing credit (FAPC) facility having sanctioned limit of Rupees 325 million (June 30, 2023: Rupees 250 million) including one-
off FAPC facility of Rupees 100 million (June 30, 2023: Rupees 50 million) has been obtained from Bank Al-Habib Limited. The rate of mark-up
on this facility is three months KIBOR plus 1.75% (June 30, 2023: three months KIBOR plus 1.75%) per annum .The principal is to be repaid upon
realization of exports proceeds as per the tenor of respective bill but not later than 120 and 180 days from the draw down date or on demand while
mark-up is to be serviced upon adjustment of each loan or at the end of each calendar quarter whichever is earlier. The facility is valid till February
07, 2027 with credit review on annual basis.

13.2  The IBP receivable finance facility having sanctioned limit of Rupees 25 million (June 30, 2023: Rupees 25 million) has been obtained from Bank
Al-Habib Limited for financing of receivables. It carries mark-up at three months KIBOR plus 1.75% (June 30, 2023: three months KIBOR plus
1.75%) per annum. The principal amount is to be repaid on maturity through own sources or on demand but not later than 90 days from draw
down date while mark-up is payable along with principal on maturity or at the end of each calendar quarter whichever is earlier.The facility is valid
till February 07, 2027 with credit review on annual basis.

13.3  The running finance facility having sanctioned limit of Rupees 35 million (June 30, 2023: Rupees 35 million) has been obtained from Bank Al-
Habib Limited for working capital requirements. It carries mark-up at three months KIBOR plus 1.75% (June 30, 2023: three months KIBOR plus
1.75%) per annum payable quarterly. The facility is valid till February 07, 2027 with credit review on annual basis.

13.4  The facilities mentioned in 13.1, 13.2 and 13.3 are commonly secured against first charge of Rupees 365 million (June 2023: Rupees 350 million)
over current assets of the Company registered with SECP (charge upto Rs. 180 million to 365 million upgraded to first Pari Passu charge).
Equitable mortgage supported by first charge on fixed assets of Rupees 450 million (June 30, 2023: Rupees 400 million) (Charge upto Rs. 250
million to 450 million upgraded to first Pari Passu charge) comprising land 90 Kanals & 08 Marlas, building, plant and machinery situated at 19 KM
G.T. Road Kala Shah Kaku. Lien over export documents under letter of credit and contract, shipping documents, accepted drafts, counter
guarantee of the Company and personal guarantees of Directors / Shareholders amounting to Rupees 300 million each (June 30, 2023: Rupees
300 million). The running finance facility at note 13.3 in addition to securities aforesaid is also secured against pro note amounting to Rs. 71.750
million (June 2023 : Rupees 59.5 million).

13.5 As at June 30, 2024, the Company has facilities from Bank Al-Habib Limited relating to import letters of credit (sight/ usance) amounting to
Rupees 5 million (June 30, 2023: Rupees 7 million). The Company has also obtained letter of credit facility (one off) amounting to Rupees 19.417
million (June 30,2023: 21.417 million). Additionally, Company has letter of guarantee facility amounting to Rupees 15 million (June 30, 2023:
Rupees 15 million) from Bank Al-Habib Limited.

13.6  The net aggregate short term borrowing facilities unavailed at end of June 30, 2024 amount to Rupees 53.35 million (June 30, 2023: Rupees
0.03311 million) and for letters of credit and bank guarantees amount to Rupees 28.16 million (June 30, 2023: Rupees 10.744 million).

13.7  The loans from chief executive / director (Khwaja Imtiaz Ahmed) and his close relative (Khwaja Ahmed Hassan) amounting to Rs. 23.117 million
(June 30, 2023: 13.162 million) and Rs. 24.822 million (June 30, 2023: 28.477 million) respectively, are for working capital requirments. These
loans are re-payable on demand and non-interest bearing.

14 CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS
14.1 Contingencies
1411 The Pakistan Environmental Protection Agency has filed a complaint against the Company before the Environmental Protection Tribunal on March
25, 2005 on account of Company's failure to properly dispose effluent water discharge during the production. The agency regards this to be a
criminal offence. The Company has filed a writ petition against the Agency's claim before the Honourable Lahore High Court ("LHC") on April 8,

2005. The Company has not recognized any liability in this regard since it awaits the decision of LHC which is pending. As per Legal Counsel of
the Company, it is anticipated that the Company has a fair chance of success. In this context, therefore, no adverse results can be contemplated.

14.1.2 Guarantees issued by bank on behalf of Company as at June 30, 2024 amounting to Rupees 11.256 million (June 30, 2023: Rupees 11.256
million).
142  Commitments

Letters of credit outstanding for other than capital expenditure from Bank-Al-Habib Limited as at June 30, 2024 of Rupees nil (June 30, 2023:
Rupees 20.945 million)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024

17 LONG TERM DEPOSITS 30 June 2024 30 June 2023

Security deposits 3,105 3,105

18 STORES, SPARE PARTS AND LOOSE TOOLS

Stores, spare parts and loose tools 14,597 26,867
Packing material 259 1,892
14,856 28,759

18.1 It is impracticable to distinguish stores, spare parts and loose tools, each from the other.
18.2  Stores, spare parts and loose tools are generally held for internal use only.
18.3 No item of stores, spare parts and loose tools is pledged as security as at the reporting date.

19 STOCK-IN-TRADE

Raw material 858,471 654,634
Raw material-in-transit - 108
Work in process 15,360 131,013
Finished goods:
Gelatine 119,446 23,329
By-product Di-Calcium Phosphate (DCP) -note- 19.1 - 5,936
119,446 29,265
993,277 815,020

19.1 The entire stock of by-product, Di-Calcium Phosphate (DCP) is carried at net realizable value.
19.2  No item of stock-in-trade is pledged as security as at the reporting date.

20 TRADE DEBTS

Considered good:

Unsecured -Local 4,810 26,601

Unsecured -Foreign -note- 20.1 22,014 -
26,824 26,601

Considered doubtful:

Unsecured - Local 6,784 -
33,608 26,601

Less: Provision for doubtful trade debts -note- 20.2 6,784 -
26,824 26,601

20.1 These include an amount of Rupees 12,245,339 (2023: Rupees nil) due from an associated Company, Leiner Gelatine SDN. BHD. and is
not past due and impaired. The maximum aggregate amount due from the associated Company at the end of any month during the year was
Rupees 12,245,339 (2023: Rupees nil).

30 June 2024 30 June 2023

20.2  Movement of provision for doubtful trade debt is as follows:

Balance as at July 1 -
Provision during the year 6,784 -

Less: Doubtful trade debt recovered - -
Net provision for doubtful debts during the year -note- 31 6,784 -
Balance as at June 30 6,784 -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024

21 ADVANCES

30 June 2024 30 June 2023

Consideredgood: e Rupees in thousand----------
T o staff - secured -note- 21.1 1,155 1,214
To suppliers - unsecured 4,589 148,362
5,744 149,576

211 These are amounts advanced to staff against future salaries and retirement benefits and are in accordance with the Company's policy and
are interest-free. None of the advances relate to executives and directors.

30 June 2024 30 June 2023
22 TRADE DEPOSITS AND SHORT TERM PREPAYMENTS ~ emeeeeeeee] Rupees in thousand----------
Prepayments 1,617 1,348
23 OTHER RECEIVABLES
Sales tax refundable -note- 23.1 19,511 8,061
19,511 8,061
231 This represents excess of input tax on purchases over sales tax payable.
24 ADVANCE TAX - NET
Advance tax 77,113 71,159
Less: Adjustment for provision for taxation -note- 33 (35,145) (27,263)
Advance tax at the end of the year 41,968 43,896
25 CASH AND BANK BALANCES
With banks:
in current accounts:
Local currency 1,160 1,007
Cash in hand 8,670 816
9,830 1,823
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024

26 SALES -NET 30 June 2024 30 June 2023

Export sales -note- 26.1 2,294,946 1,485,969
Local sales -note- 26.2 1,049,588 849,052
3,344,534 2,335,021
26.1 Export sales
Gelatine 2,294,946 1,485,969
26.2 Local sales
Gelatine 478,199 443,830
Di-Calcium Phosphate, by-product 719,734 553,266
1,197,933 997,096
Less: sales tax 148,345 | 148,044
trade discounts - -
148,345 148,044
1,049,588 849,052
27 COST OF SALES
Raw material consumed -note- 27.1 1,847,562 1,265,681
Stores, spare parts and loose tools consumed 163,221 153,248
Packing material consumed 14,508 12,148
Salaries, wages and benefits -note- 27.2 134,401 91,520
Fuel and power 646,719 457,746
Factory overheads -note- 27.3 94,758 79,799
2,901,169 2,060,142
Add: opening work in process | 131,013 | | 51,386 |
Less: closing work in process 15,360 131,013
115,653 (79,627)
Cost of goods manufactured 3,016,822 1,980,515
Add: opening stock of finished goods 29,265 | | 14,208 |
Less: closing stock of finished goods 119,446 29,265
(90,181) (15,057)

1,965,458

2,926,641
27.1 Raw material consumed

Opening stock 654,634 584,617
Purchases 2,051,399 1,335,698

2,706,033 1,920,315
Less: closing stock 858,471 654,634

1,265,681

1,847,562

27.2 Salaries, wages and benefits include employer's contribution to recognised provident fund amounting to Rupees 2,537,592 (June 30, 2023: Rupees

2,237,247).

27.3 Factory overheads 30 June 2024 30 June 2023

---------- Rupees in thousand-----------
Indirect labour wages 12,913 12,075
Insurance 1,137 1,074
Medical expenses - 25
Repair and maintenance 43,334 40,699
Depreciation -note- 15.3 15,972 15,878
Loading and unloading 9,462 6,134
Miscellaneous expenses 11,940 3,914
94,758 79,799
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024

28 OTHER INCOME 30 June 2024 30 June 2023

Income from financial instruments:

Amortisation of government grant - 56

Income from non-financial assets:

Gain on disposal of fixed asset -note- 15.7 515 431
515 487

29 DISTRIBUTION COST

Shipping expenses 35,800 55,184
Commission on exports 720 1,601
Other expenses 27,658 8,718

64,178 65,503

30 ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

Salaries, wages and benefits -note- 30.1 47,059 43,782
Insurance 1,234 663
Vehicle running and maintenance 15,890 11,808
Rent, rates and taxes 1,611 1,087
Travelling and conveyance 5,700 3,566
Legal and professional charges 326 443
Printing and stationery 1,499 1,999
Fees and subscription 4,050 2,568
Telephone and postage 1,720 1,287
Repair and maintenance 13,005 1,580
Auditors' remuneration -note- 30.2 1,477 1,202
Entertainment 7,532 5,916
Utilities 1,621 1,225
Depreciation -note- 15.3 6,236 6,350
Amortisation -note- 16 - -
Security expenses 4,975 3,002
Miscellaneous expenses 2,251 2,493
116,186 88,971
30.1 Salaries, wages and benefits include employer's contribution to recognised provident fund amounting to Rupees 1,314,029 (June 30, 2023: Rupees
1,129,648).
30.2 Auditors' remuneration 30 June 2024 30 June 2023
---------- Rupees in thousand---=-------
Audit fee 1,100 900
Fee for half yearly limited review of financial information 250 200
Review of statement of code of corporate governance, CDC and free-float
certifications 100 75
Out of pocket expenses 27 27
1,477 1,202
31 OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES
Workers' Profit Participation Fund -note- 11.3 6,899 5,564
Workers' Welfare Fund -note- 35 3,475 2,783
Sales tax written off 1,286 24,893
Provision for doubtful trade debt -note- 20.2 6,784 -
Donations -note- 31.1 2,545 1,285
Foreign exchange loss - net 1,536 21,570
22,525 56,095

31.1 Donations

Details of donations given to a single party exceeding Rs. 1,000,000/- or 10 percent of the Company's total amount of donations, whichever is higher,
during the year are as follows:

30 June 2024 30 June 2023

---------- Rupees in thousand-----------
Shaukat Khanum Memorial Trust 2,030 935
Hijaz Hospital 500 300

31.1.1 None of the directors or their spouses had any interest in the donees in respect of donations made by the Company.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024

32 FINANCE COST 30 June 2024 30 June 2023

Mark-up/ interest on:

Short term borrowings 73,412 42,808
Long term finance - 831
Workers' Profit Participation Fund -note- 11.3 2,876 497
Lease liabilities -note- 9.1 2,940 3,470
Bank charges and commission 11,568 9,432
90,796 57,038

33 LEVIES AND TAXATION

33.1 Final tax -note- 33.1.1 21,173 16,389

33.1.1 This represents final tax paid under section 154 of Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 (ITO, 2001), representing levy in terms of requirements of IFRIC

21/IAS 37.
30 June 2024 30 June 2023
---------- Rupees in thousand-----------
33.2 Minimum tax -note- 33.2.1 1,531 -

33.2.1 This represents portion of minimum tax paid under section 113 of Income Tax Ordinance (ITO, 2001), representing levy in terms of requirements of
IFRIC 21/IAS 37.
30 June 2024 30 June 2023

33.3 Income tax

Current - for the year 11,589 10,874
-for prior years 1,645 706
13,234 11,580
Deferred - current year -note- 10 7,266 7,801
- effect of change in tax rate - -
7,266 7,801
20,500 19,381
33.4 Reconciliation of current tax charged as per tax laws for the year, with current tax recognised in the profit and loss account, is as follows:
30 June 2024 30 June 2023
---------- Rupees in thousand-----------
Current tax liability for the year as per applicable tax laws 34,293 27,263
Portion of current tax liability as per tax laws, representing income tax under IAS 12 (11,589) (10,874)
Portion of current tax computed as per tax laws, representing levy in terms of
requirements of IFRIC 21/IAS 37 (22,704) (16,389)
Difference - -
33.5 Relationship between taxes, levies and accounting profit for the year is as follows:
Profit before levies and taxation - 102,443
Tax at the applicable rate of 29% - 29,709
Tax effect of:
-expense not deductible for tax purposes - 10,992
-expenses deductible for tax purposes but - (3,185)
not taken to profit and loss account
-income not subject to tax/ income subject to final tax - 217
Adjustment in respect of prior years - 706
Adjustment in respect of minimum tax credits/ tax credit for donation - (10,470)
Deferred taxation - 7,801
Levies and income tax - 35,770

33.6 The numeric tax reconciliation has not been presented for current year as local sale of the Company attracted minimum tax under section 113 and
exports under section 154 of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001.

33.7 The Income Tax assessments of the Company are complete upto tax year 2023, as deemed assessments in terms of Section 120(1) of the Income
Tax Ordinance, 2001 (The Ordinance) as per income tax returns of the Company.

33.8 Finance Act, 2019 has fixed the corporate tax rate for Companies at 29% for current as well as future tax years. Deferred tax has been measured at
the rates that are expected to be applied to the temporary differences when those are expected to reverse based on the rates enacted or
substantively enacted by the reporting date.



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024

34 EARNINGS PER SHARE - BASIC AND DILUTED 30 June 2024 30 June 2023

There was no dilutive effect on basic earnings per share
of the Company which is based on:

Profit after taxation attributable to ordinary 81,519 66,673
shareholders of the Company
Weighted average number of ordinary shares (No. of shares) 7,500 7,500
outstanding during the year
Earnings per share (Rupees) 10.87 8.89
30 June 2024 30 June 2023
35 CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS ] Rupees in thousand-----------
Profit before final tax, minimum tax and income tax 124,723 102,443
Adjustments for:
Depreciation -note- 15.3 22,208 22,228
Provision for employee retirement benefits -note- 30.1, 27.2 3,852 3,367
Finance cost -note- 32 90,796 57,038
Provision for Workers' Profit Participation Fund -note- 11.3 6,899 5,564
Provision for Workers' Welfare Fund -note- 31 3,475 2,783
Government grant recognised as income - (56)
Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment -note- 28, 15.7 (515) (431)
126,715 90,493
Operating profit before changes in working capital 251,438 192,936
Changes in working capital
Decrease/(Increase) in current assets:
Stores, spare parts and loose tools 13,903 78,150
Stock-in-trade (178,257) (164,794)
Trade debts (223) (4,292)
Advances 143,831 (147,447)
Trade deposits and short term prepayments (270) (193)
Other receivables (11,451) 20,919
(Decrease)/ increase in current liabilities:
Trade and other payables (95,122) 63,672

35.1

Reconcilition of movement of liabilities to cashflows arising from financing activities

Short term finance - secured

June 30, 2023

Net (decrease)
I Increase due
to cash flows

Rupees inthousand

123,849 38,951

June 30, 2024

Running Finance 34,977 (18,314) 16,663
Bank-Al-Habib Limited
Short Term Finance against IBP receivables 25,000 (25,000) -
Bank-Al-Habib Limited
Export Refinance 249,990 65,000 314,990
Bank-Al-Habib Limited
309,967 21,686 331,653
From related parties - unsecured
Loans from director and close relative thereof 41,639 6,300 47,939
351,606 27,986 379,592
Sponsor’s Loan — Related Party 82,500 - 82,500
434,106 27,986 462,092
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024

30 June 2024 30 June 2023

36 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and bank balances -note- 25 9,830 1,823

37 JUDGEMENTS, ESTIMATES AND ASSUMPTIONS
37.1 Depreciation / amortisation methods, rates and useful lives

The management of the Company reassesses useful lives, depreciation method and rates for each item of property, plant and equipment and
intangible assets annually by considering expected pattern of economic benefits that the Company expects to derive from that item.

37.2 Recoverable amounts of assets / cash generating units

The management of the Company reviews carrying amounts of its assets and cash generating units for possible impairment and makes formal
estimates of recoverable amounts if there is any such indication.

37.3 Taxation
The Company takes into account the current income tax law and decisions taken by appellate authorities. Instances where the Company's view differs
from the view taken by the income tax department at the assessment stage and where the Company considers that its view on items of material

nature is in accordance with law, the amounts are shown as contingent liabilities.

37.4 Provisions

Provisions are based on best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the present obligation at the reporting date, that is, the amount that the
Company would rationally pay to settle the obligation at the reporting date or to transfer it to a third party.

37.5 Revaluation of freehold land

Revaluation of freehold land is carried out by independent professional valuers. Revalued amounts are determined by the reference to local market
values.

37.6 Stock in trade/ Stores, spare parts & loose tools
Management has made estimates for realizable amount of slow moving and obsolete stocks, stores, spare parts & loose tools items to determine

provision for slow moving and obsolete items. Any future change in the estimated realizable amounts might affect carrying amount of stocks, stores,
spare parts & loose tools with corresponding effect on amounts recognized in statement of profit or loss as provision / reversal.

37.7 Impairment of financial assets

The management makes judgments for estimating the allowances for Expected Credit Losses (ECLs) in respect of financial assets measured at
amortized cost.

37.8 Leases

The management uses judgments for recognition of leases under IFRS 16 and the related practical expedients thereunder.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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38 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
30 June 2024 30 June 2023
38.1 Financial instruments e Rupees in thousand---------
The following are financial instruments by category:

Financial assets at amortized cost

Security deposits 1 1
Trade debts 26,824 26,601
Advances 1,155 1,214
Cash and bank balances 9,830 1,823

37,810 29,639

Financial liabilities at amortized cost

Lease liabilities 13,602 18,625
Short term borrowings 379,592 351,606
Mark up accrued 14,676 10,966
Trade and other payables 474,278 301,663
Unclaimed dividend 771 771

— 882919 683631

The Company's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks including effects of changes in foreign exchange rates, market interest
rates, credit and liquidity risks associated with various financial assets and liabilities. The Board of Directors of the Company has overall
responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Company's risk management framework.

38.2 Creditrisk
Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Company if a customer or counterparty to a financial instrument fails to meet its contractual

obligations. The carrying amounts of the financial assets represent the maximum credit exposure. The maximum exposure to credit risk at
the reporting date is as under:

30 June 2024 30 June 2023

Security deposits 1 1
Trade debts 26,824 26,601
Advances 1,155 1,214
Bank balances 1,160 1,007

29,139 28,823

The maximum exposure to credit risk for trade debts amounting to Rupees 26.824 million (June 30, 2023: Rupees 26.601 million) at the
reporting date by geographic region is as under:

30 June 2024 30 June 2023

Domestic 4,810 26,601
Export 22,014 -
26,824 26,601

The export debtor of the Company is situated in Malaysia.

The maximum exposure to credit risk for trade debts amounting to Rupees 26.824 million (June 30, 2023: Rupees 26.601 million) at the
reporting date by type of customer is as under:

30 June 2024 30 June 2023

End user customers 26,824 26,601
26,824 26,601
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The aging of trade debts at the reporting date is as under:
30 June 2024 30 June 2023

Not past due 9,769 16,410
Past due 1-30 days 16,054 438
Past due 31-120 days 957 1,720
Past due 121-365 days 44 8,033
More than one year 6,784 -

33,608 26,601
Less: Provision for doubtful trade debts 6,784 -

26,824 26,601

The Company continuously monitors the credit exposure towards the customers and makes provisions against those balances considered
doubtful of recovery. The Company manages credit risk by limiting significant exposure to individual customers and obtaining advances
against sales. Based on (i) historic record (ii) subsequent recoveries and (iii) confirmation of balance /acceptance of liability by customer,
the Company believes that no impairment allowance is necessary in respect of trade debts past due amounts upto one year. Further, bank
balances are held only with reputable banks with high quality credit ratings. The short term and long term credit ratings as determined by
PACRA and JCR-VIS are as follows:

---------- Rating---------- 30 June 2024 30 June 2023
Short term Long term Agency = seeeeeed| Rupees in thousand---------

Banks
National Bank of Pakistan A1+ AAA PACRA 2 2
Bank Alfalah Limited A1+ AAA PACRA 10 5
Bank Al - Habib Limited A1+ AAA PACRA 1,071 956
MCB Bank Limited A1+ AAA PACRA 8 9
Bank Makramah Limited A-3 BBB- JCR - VIS 1 14
United Bank Limited A-1+ AAA JCR- VIS 66 19
Bank Islami Pakistan Limited A1 AA- PACRA 2 2
1,160 1,007

38.3 Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will not be able to meet its financial obligations as they fall due. The Company closely monitors its
liquidity and cash flow position. This includes maintenance of financial position, liquidity ratios, debtors and creditors concentration both in
terms of overall funding mix and avoidance of undue reliance on large individual customer. The following are contractual maturities of
financial liabilities, including interest payments and excluding the impact of netting agreements.

Carrying Contractual 6 months 6 to 12 2to5 More than

amount cash flows or less months years 5 years
June 30, 2024

Rupees in thousand

Lease liabilities 13,602 15,898 4,174 4,174 7,550 -
Short term borrowings 379,592 391,848 391,848 - - -
Mark up accrued 14,676 14,676 14,676 - - -
Trade and other payables 474,278 474,278 474,278 - - -
Unclaimed dividend 771 771 771 - - -

882,919 897,471 885,747 4,174 7,550 -

June 30, 2023
Rupees in thousand

Lease liabilities 18,625 23,958 3,992 3,995 15,971 -
Short term borrowings 351,606 364,424 364,424 - - -
Mark up accrued 10,966 10,966 10,966 - - -
Trade and other payables 301,663 301,663 301,663 - - -
Unclaimed dividend 771 771 771 - - -

683,631 701,782 681,816 3,995 15,971 -

The contractual cash flows relating to the above financial liabilities have been determined on the basis of mark up rates effective as at 30
June. The rates of mark up have been disclosed in notes 9.2,13.1,13.2 & 13.3 to these financial statements.
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38.4 Market risk

Market risk is the risk that the value of the financial instrument may fluctuate as a result of changes in market interest rates or the market
price due to change in credit rating of the issuer or the instrument, change in market sentiments, speculative activities, supply and demand
of securities and the liquidity in the market. The Company is exposed to currency risk and interest rate risk only.

38.4.1 Currency risk

The Company is exposed to a currency risk on trade debts of Rupees 22.014 million as at June 30, 2024 (June 30, 2023: Rupees nil
million) that are denominated in a currency other than the functional currency of the Company. The Aggregate exposure of statement of
financial position to currency risk works out to be Rupees 22.014 million as at June 30, 2024 (June 30, 2023: Rupees nil ). The currency in
which these transactions primarily denominated is US Dollar.

[ 2024 | 2023 | [ 2024 [ 2023 |
[ Average rates | [ Reporting date rate |
Significant exchange rates applied during the year:
US Dollar 283.23 245.59 278.30 286.60

Sensitivity analysis

A 10 percent strengthening of the Rupee against above mentioned currency as at 30 June 2024 would have decreased profit by Rupees
2.201 million mainly as a result of net foreign exchange difference on translation of foreign currency net assets. The analysis assumes that
all other variables remain constant. A 10 percent weakening of the Rupee against above currencies at 30 June 2024 would have had the
equal but opposite effect on the profit or loss, on the basis that all other variables remain constant.

38.4.2 Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or the future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market
interest rates. Majority of the interest rate exposure arises from short term borrowings from banks. At the reporting date, the interest rate
profile of the Company's variable interest bearing financial instruments is given below:

The variable rate financial liabilities as at June 30, 2024 aggregated to Rupees 345.255 million (June 30, 2023: 328.592 million) and fixed
rate liabilities aggregated to Rupees nil (June 30, 2023: nil ). The Company does not account for fixed rate financial assets at fair value
through profit and loss. Therefore, a change in interest rates at the reporting date would not affect the statement of profit or loss and the
equity of the Company. A change of 100 basis points in interest rates at the reporting date would have (decreased) / increased the loss /
profit for the year by the amounts shown below. The analysis assumes that all other variables, in particular foreign currency rates, remain

constant.
Profit & loss
100 bp 100 bp
increase decrease

As at June 30, 2024

Cash flow sensitivity - variable rate instruments (693) 693

As at June 30, 2023

Cash flow sensitivity - variable rate instruments (803) 803
38.5 Fair Value of Financial Instruments

Fair Value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market
participants at the measurement date.

A financial Instrument is regarded as quoted in an active market if quoted prices are readily and regularly available from an exchange
dealer, broker, industry group, pricing service or regulatory agency, and those prices represent actual and regularly occurring market
transactions on an arm’s length basis.

The Company classifies fair value measurements and fair value hierarchy that reflects the significance of the inputs used in making the
measurements of fair value. Fair value hierarchy has the following levels:

- Level 1: Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

- Level 2: Inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability either directly
(i.e. as prices), or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices).

- Level 3: Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (i.e. unadjusted) inputs.

Transfer between levels of the fair value hierarchy are recognized at the end of the reporting period during which the changes have
occurred.

The carrying values of all financial assets and liabilities reflected in the financial statements approximate their fair values.
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38.6 Fair value measurement — non-financial assets

(i) Fair value hierarchy

Judgments and estimates are made for non-financial assets that are measured at fair value in these financial statements. To provide an
indication of the reliability of the inputs used in determining fair value, the Company has classified its non-financial assets into following
three levels:

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Rupees (000) | Rupees (000) | Rupees (000) [ Rupees (000)

As at June 30, 2024

Freehold land - 573,480 - 573,480

As at June 30, 2023

Freehold land - 573,480 - 573,480

(ii) Valuation techniques used in determining level 2 fair value

The Company obtains independent valuations of its freehold land at revalued amounts every three to five years. The best evidence of fair
value of freehold land is current prices in an active market for similar lands.

(iii) Valuation process

The Company engages external, independent and qualified valuers to determine the fair value as detailed in note 7.2 of the financial
statements.

39 CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Company's prime objective when managing capital is to safeguard its ability to continue as a going concern in order to provide
adequate returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of
capital.

In order to maintain or adjust capital structure, the Company may adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders, issue new shares or
sell assets to reduce debts.

Consistent with others in industry, the Company monitors capital on the basis of gearing ratio. The ratio is calculated as net debt divided by
total capital. Net debt represents total of long term financing, lease liabilities and short term borrowings less cash and bank balances. Total
capital is calculated as equity shown in statement of financial position plus net debt. There were no major changes in the Company's
management during the year and the Company is not subject to externally imposed capital requirement.

30 June 2024 30 June 2023

Total borrowing 393,194 370,231
Less: Cash and bank balances 9,830 1,823
Net debt 383,364 368,408
Total equity 881,355 799,835
Total capital 1,264,719 1,168,243
Gearing ratio 30.31% 31.54%

40 OPERATING SEGMENTS
40.1 These financial statements have been prepared on the basis of a single reportable segment.

40.2 Sales revenue from Gelatine and Di-Calcium Phosphate (by-product) represent 81.76% and 18.24% (June 30, 2023: 79.83% and 20.17%)
of the total revenue of the Company respectively.

40.3 All non-current assets of the Company as at June 30, 2024 are located in Pakistan.

40.4 Sales to external customers Martin Dow Marker Limited, Pakistan is around 2.81% (2023: 6.48%), Sri Nona food (formerly known as
Cocoaland Industries) Malaysia is around 58.62% (2023: 57.91%) and Nestle Pakistan Limited is around 5.24% (2023: 5.54% ) of the total
revenue of the Company during the year ended June 30, 2024.

40.5 The sales percentage by geographic region is as follows:
30 June 2024 30 June 2023
% %

0
Pakistan 31.38 36.36
Malaysia 67.81 63.64
Vietnam 0.81 -
100 100
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FORM 20
THE COMPANIES ACT, 2017
(Section 227(2)(f))
PATTERN OF SHAREHOLDING
1.1 Name of the Company [LEINER PAK GELATINE LIMITED |
2.1. Pattern of holding of the shares held by the shareholders as at [ 30-06-2024 |
------ Shareholdings------

2.2 No. of Shareholders From To Total Shares Held
165 1 100 7,343
246 101 500 58,955

48 501 1,000 45,206
140 1,001 5,000 426,669
20 5,001 10,000 153,227
4 10,001 15,000 50,808
2 15,001 20,000 39,295
4 20,001 25,000 93,744
4 25,001 30,000 109,174
4 30,001 35,000 126,449
2 35,001 40,000 75,800
1 40,001 45,000 41,430
2 45,001 50,000 100,000
6 50,001 55,000 312,044
1 55,001 60,000 59,800

1 65,001 70,000 66,000

1 70,001 75,000 74,000

1 105,001 110,000 105,680
3 155,001 160,000 479,500
2 170,001 175,000 340,600
1 200,001 205,000 202,500
2 210,001 215,000 429,200
1 270,001 275,000 270,300

1 300,001 305,000 304,550

1 315,001 320,000 320,000

1 330,001 335,000 330,020

1 335,001 340,000 337,900
2 415,001 420,000 836,941
1 750,001 755,000 751,765

1 950,001 955,000 951,100
669 7,500,000
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2.3 Categories of Shareholders

2.3.1 Directors, Chief Executive Officer,
and their spouse and minor children

2.3.2 Associated Companies,
undertakings and related
parties. (Parent Company)

2.3.3 NIT and ICP

2.3.4 Banks Development
Financial Institutions, Non

Banking Financial Institutions.

2.3.5 Insurance Companies

2.3.6 Modarabas and Mutual
Funds

2.3.7 Shareholders holding 10%
or more

2.3.8 General Public
a. Local
b. Foreign

2.3.9 Others (to be specified)
- Joint Stock Companies

- Pension Funds

- Other Companies

72

3,439,815

417,141

25

15

1,756,865

3,550,606
0

89,716
2,494
188

Percentage

45.8642%

5.5619%

0.0003%

0.0002%

0.0000%

0.0000%

23.4248%

47.3414%
0.0000%

1.1962%
0.0333%
0.0025%



LEINER PAK GELATINE LIMITED
Categories of Shareholding required under Code of Corporate Governance (CCG)
As on June 30, 2024

No. of Shares
Sr. No. Name Held Percentage

Associated Companies, Undertakings and Related Parties (Name Wise Detail):
1 INA SECURITIES (PVT) LIMITED. (CDC) 417,141 5.5619%

Mutual Funds (Name Wise Detail) - -

Directors and their Spouse and Minor Children (Name Wise Detail):

1 KH. IMTIAZ AHMED 805,765 10.7435%
2 MRS. AYESHA QASIM 172,200 2.2960%
3 MR. IJAZ AHMED KHAWAJA 304,550 4.0607%
4 MR. RASHID MINHAS 1,000 0.0133%
5 KH. IBRAR AHMED 951,100 12.6813%
6 MR. AHMED ALI RIAZ 74,000 0.9867%
7 SYED RIZWAN HAIDER 500 0.0067%
8 MRS. NAVIDA IMTIAZ W/O KH. IMTIAZ AHMED 657,900 8.7720%
9 MRS. NEELUM NAZ W/O KH. IJAZ AHMED 202,500 2.7000%
10 MRS. NAUSHEEN IBRAR W/O KH. IBRAR AHMED 270,300 3.6040%
Executives: 657,900 8.7720%

Public Sector Companies & Corporations: - -

Banks, Development Finance Institutions, Non Banking Finance 2,509 0.0335%
Companies, Insurance Companies, Takaful, Modarabas and Pension Funds:

Shareholders holding five percent or more voting intrest in the listed company (Name Wise Detail)

1 KH. IBRAR AHMED 951,100 12.6813%
2 KH. IMTIAZ AHMED 805,765 10.7435%
3 KH. AHMED HASSAN 749,820 9.9976%
4 INA SECURITIES (PVT) LIMITED. (CDC) 417,141 5.5619%

All trades in the shares of the listed company, carried out by its Directors, Executives and their
spouses and minor children shall also be disclosed:

S.No. NAME SALE PURCHASE
1 KH. IMTIAZ AHMED (CDC) - 54,000
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?’ :‘L, Education Initiative of
;Q 4%  Securites and Exchange

o Commission of Pakistan *Mobile apps are also available for download for android and ios devices

SECP
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Form of Proxy

The Company Secretary,
Leiner Pak Gelatine Ltd.
17-G, Gulberg2,
Lahore-54660

ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING
I/ We
of being a member of LEINER PAK GELATINE LIMITED,
holder of Ordinary Shares as per Share Register Folio No.
(No. of Shares)
and/or CDC Participant I.D. No.
and Sub Account No. hereby appoint
Of
Or failing him of

as my/our proxy to vote for me /us and on my / our behalf at the Annual General Meeting of the Company to be
held on 28™day of October, 2024 and at any adjournment thereof.

Signedthis__ dayof 2024

WITNESSES
1. Signature

Signature on

Name Rs. 5/-
Address

Revenue stamp

NIC or
Passport No.

(Signature should agree with the
2. Signature specimen signature registered with
the Company

Name
Address

NIC or
Passport No.

Note:
1. A member entitled to be present and vote at the Meeting may appoint a proxy to attend and vote for him /
her. A proxy need be a member of the Company.
2. Proxies in order to be effective must be received at the Registered Office of the Company not less than 48
hours before the meeting.

3. CDC Shareholders and there Proxies must each attach an attested photocopy of there

National Identity Card of Passport with this proxy form.

75



17-G, Gulberg-2, G/Postmall Box-3529, Lahore-54660
Phones #:92-42-35756953-54
Works: 19-Kilometer, Shahrah-e-Pakistan, Kala Shah Kaku,
District Sheikhupura.



	Page 1
	Page 2
	Page 3
	Page 4
	Page 5
	Page 6
	Page 7
	Page 8
	Page 9
	Page 10
	Page 11
	Page 12
	Page 13
	Page 14
	Page 15
	Page 16
	Page 17
	Page 18
	Page 19
	Page 20
	Page 21
	Page 22
	Page 23
	Page 24
	Page 25
	Page 26
	Page 27
	Page 28
	Page 29
	Page 30
	Page 31
	Page 32
	Page 33
	Page 34
	Page 35
	Page 36
	Page 37
	Page 38
	Page 39
	Page 40
	Page 41
	Page 42
	Page 43
	Page 44
	Page 45
	Page 46
	Page 47
	Page 48
	Page 49
	Page 50
	Page 51
	Page 52
	Page 53
	Page 54
	Page 55
	Page 56
	Page 57
	Page 58
	Page 59
	Page 60
	Page 61
	Page 62
	Page 63
	Page 64
	Page 65
	Page 66
	Page 67
	Page 68
	Page 69
	Page 70
	Page 71
	Page 72
	Page 73
	Page 74
	Page 75
	Page 76
	Page 77
	Page 78

